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SUMMARY

This report details the draft unaudited Statement of Accounts for 2023/24 and
summarises the headlines from those financial statements. The Accounts will be
subject to external audit, the dates of which are subject to confirmation.

Actual operational spending on all Authority facilities and services was reported to
Executive Committee in May 2024 (Papers E/853/24 and E/854/24) with all variations
then fully explained.

Further adjustments relating to expenditure not yet capitalised and farm produce
valuation were also reported within the Revenue Outturn report.

The result is an end of year position on the income and expenditure account of a
£1.97million surplus against the General Fund reserve, along with £3.273million capital
expenditure. Additionally, there was net expenditure of £0.325million charged to
earmarked reserves.

RECOMMENDATIONS
Members Note: (1) the draft Statement of Accounts for 2023/24; and
(2) that any changes recommended by the Auditor at
the conclusion of any Audit will be incorporated into
the revised Financial Statements, for approval by
Audit Committee.
BACKGROUND

1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, as amended in June 2022 state that
Financial Statements should be approved and published by 30 September.

2 In addition to publication of the audited accounts, the Authority is required to make
avallable the draft unaudited accounts for public inspection for a period of 30
working days which should include the first 10 working days of June. The Authority
published the notice on 31 May, with the period for the exercise of public rights
covering the period 3 June 2024 to 12 July 2024 inclusive.
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AUDIT PLANNING

3

Due to significant delays in approval of accounts across the local govemment
sector, the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC)
announced a range of proposals in July 2023 to attempt to address the backlog
of local audits in England.

The Government have engaged with both the local government sector, and the
Financial Reporting Council (FRC) since the Summer. DLUHC published a report
in November 2023 on its findings from its inquiry to clear this backlog.

On 8 February, DLUHC launched consultations on the proposals for clearing the
audit backlog.

The first phase of this involved a reset involving clearing the backlog of historical
audit opinions up to and including financial year 2022/23 by 30 September 2024,
The consultation ran for the period 8 February 2024 to 7 March 2024. At
production of this report, the result of the consultation period has not yet been
announced.

One of the recommendation within the consultation was to amend the dates for
approval of accounts, from the current 30 September to one of 31 May 2025 for
the financial year 2023/24. There then follows a gradual pulling in of approval
dates up until 2027/28, after which the deadline reverts again to 30 September.

The external auditor, Ernst & Young (EY) have indicated that subject to the
conclusion and recommendations of the consultation, their current intention is to
present an indicative audit planning report at the Audit Committee in September
2024, with the audit fieldwork taking place at the end of the calendar year.

GENERAL FUND SERVICE SPENDING

5

The provisional actual expenditure for each service and venue has been reported
to Executive Committee in the Revenue Outturn report in May (Paper E/853/24).
Spending on our venues and services generated £0.23million, with a further
£1.82million received in respect of VAT refund from HMRC.

Further adjustments were subsequently required in respact of capital expenditure
relating to Rammey Marsh that was held within revenue pending a possible future
capital receipt, adjustment to valuation of Holyfieldhall Farm produce, and a small
overspend on 8106 projects that was not covered by grants received.

B ‘ £000s
Revenue Outturn £2,052
Land Disposal Costs Left in Revenue -52
Stock Adjustments (Farm Produce) | -29 |
§106 expenditure not covered by Income -1
!
Common Fund movement in Financial Accounts | 1,970 |

The unallocated General Fund has increased from £3.021million to
£4.991mlllion as a result of this surplus.
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CAPITAL SPENDING AND FINANCING
6 Gross capital expenditure totalled £3.273million, which excluded expenditure
charged against earmarked revenue reserves, such as the Asset Maintenance
Fund. The net outtum is fully explained in the Provisional Capital Outturn reported
to Executive Committee in May 2024 (Paper E/854/24).
Of this £1.64million related to the Lee Valley Ice Centre redevelopment.

7  Capital expenditure has been financed as follows.

[ _ £000s |
External Debt | £1,641
Capital Receipts | £1,363 |

Capital Grants Applied i £198 |

| Revenue Financing ] £71
TOTAL | £3,273 |

8 With the Lee Valley Ice Centre being handed over from Buckingham Group
Contracting Ltd in May 2023, the accounting treatment for the venue changed
from being an Asset Under Construction (AUC) to an Operation Asset. At that
point, we applied the approved £5.425million of capital receipts from the disposal
of Mile & Langley Nursery, £0.6mlllion of capital grant from London Borough of
Waltham Forest, along with the £0.8million of revenus, towards financing of the
asset. This reduced the amount of debt down to £22.788million. Appendix B to
this report includes more detail on movements.

RESERVES

9 Total usable reserves at 31 March 2024 was £16.774million, of which
£4.991million was unallocated General Fund and £9.964miilion usable capital
receipts. Net internal borrowing — the total of the Capital Financing Requirement
(CFR) and external borrowing totalled £7.446million.

The value of net liabilities — money that we held either awaiting payment to
suppliers, deposits, or receipts held in advance of service delivery was
£5.836million. Total cash held at year end amounted to £15,164million.

A summary Is shown below, with more detail around movement within these
reserves and balances Is shown in Appendix B to this report.
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2023/24
£000s

Usable Reserves
General Fund
Insurance Fund
Repairs & Renewals Funds

Sub Total Revenue Reserves

Capital and Asset Based Reserves
Asset Malntenance Reserve
Usable Capital Recelpts

Sub Total Capltal Reserves

Total Usable Reserves

Capital Financing & Borrowing
Capital Financing Requirement 32,446
External Borrowing

Net Internal Borrowing 7,446

Creditors/Debtors - General Liabllities

Net Closing Cash Balance

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2023/24

10  The Authority has adopted a code of corporate governance, which is consistent
with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Good Governance in
Local Government This statement explains how the Authority has complied with
the Code: and also meets the requirements of Regulation 6(1)b) of the Accounts
and Audit Regulations 2015 in ensuring that there is a sound system of internal
control and that this Committee approves the Annual Governance Statement for
future approval by the Executive Committee.

11 Members need to ensure that a sound system of intemal control is maintained
and an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is
conducted to provide sufficient, relevant and reliable assurance to enable them
to authorise the signing of the Authority's Annual Govemance Statement and for
it to be published with the Financial Statements.

12 Assurance derived through the monitoring of processes, including risk
management, provides evidence which allows the Authority to form conclusions
on the efficlency and effectiveness of operations. The scope of internal control
spans the whole range of the Authority's activities and includes those controls
deslgned to ensure:

the Authority’s policies are put into practice;
the organisation’s values are met,

laws and regulations are complied with;
required processes are adhered to;
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» financial statements and published information is accurate and
reliable; and

e human, financial and other resources are managed efficiently and
effectively.

13 The Annual Governance Statement for 2023/24 is set out in a separate report
on this agenda (Paper AUD/147/24) for approval by Members.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

14 There are no environmental implications arising directly from the
recommendations in this report.

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

15 There are no equality implications arising directly from the recommendations in
this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
16 These are dealt within the body of the report,
HUMAN RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

17 There are no human resource implications arising directly from the
recommendations in this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

18  There are no legal implications arising directly from the recommendations in this
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

19 These will be summarised within the Annual Governance and Narrative
Statements, and included within the Statement of Accounts.

Author:  Keith Kellard, 01992 709864, kkellard@leevalleypark.org.uk

PREVIOUS COMMITTEE REPORTS

Executive E/853/24 Q4 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2023/24 23 May 2024

Executive [E/854/24 Q4 Capital Budget Monitoring 2023/24 23 May 2024

Audit AUD/141/24 Accounting Policies & Accounts 29 February 2024
Closedown Timetable 2023/24

APPENDICES ATTACHED
Appendix A Statement of Accounts 2023/24
Appendix B Summary of Financial Movements 2023/24
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ABBREVIATIONS

DLUHC Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
FRC Financlal Reporting Council

EY Ernst & Young

VFM Value for Money



APPENDIX A
AUD/146/24

Lee Valley Regional Park Authority

Statement
of
Accounts

For the year ended 31 March 2024

DRAFT
Unaudited

Lee Valiey ‘\\

Regional Park Authority



Lee Valley Regional Park Authority

Statement of Accounts 2024
For the year ended 31 March 2024

Contents

Narrative report

Statement of responsibilities

Annual governance statement 2023/24
Independent auditor's report to members of Lee Valley Reglonal Park Authority
Movement in reserves statement

Comprehensive income and expendlture statement
Balance sheet

Cashflow Statement

Statement of Accounting Policies

Notes to the financlal statements

Glossary of financial terms and abbreviations

Page

11
15
17
18
19
20
21
32

80



Narrative Report

The Lee Valley Reglonal Park Autherlty (LVRPA) Is an award winning and leading lelsure organisation. It has a statutory duty
under the Lee Valley Reglonal Park Act (1966) to develop the 10,000 acre Park as a regional destination - a destination that
attracts over 8 million visitors a year. The Authority’'s vision is that the LVRPA should be “A World Class Leisure Destination”.

Over recent years the Authority has undertaken significant work to attract external funding to support the development of
the Regional Park; and It Is committed to continue to reduce Its reliance on the levy. The levy is a charge on council tax payers
in London, Essex and Hertfordshire — which for 2023/24 equated to 92p per person per year based on the mid-2022
population statlstics. The maximum levy is determined by a formula set out In “The Levying Bodies {General) Regulations
1992” - adjusted annually to account for Inflation.

These accounts for 2023/24 provide Information about costs and Income from our services and ocur assets and liabilities at
the year end. The report sets out a summary of significant matters and the main financial performance of the Authority during
2023/24; Its ongoing liabilities; future capltal investment and the underlylng economic climate that Influences future
performance.

In delivering its statutory objectlves the Authority uses non-financlal (as well as financial) Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
to measure in year performance with other Performance Indicators (Pls} underpinning the KPls. These KPIs were reviewed in
line with the business plan and revised KPIs were reported on from 2023/24, The table below summarises performance
against these KPIs, and comparison against 2022/23 where this data was collected:

Key Performance Indicator 2023/24 2022/23 Explanation

Levy Contribution 34.1% 35.3% Percentage charged of the maximum chargeable

Customer Satisfaction 87% 86% Customer satisfactlon Rating

Stakeholder Perception 74% 74% Stakeholder satisfaction

Usage 6.5m 6.8m Number of visits to Authority managed parkiands and venues

The usage figures above reprasent visits to parklands and venues managed hy the Authority. In addition, in 2023/24 there
were 1.8 milllon vislts to Lee Valley venues managed by Greenwich Leisure Limited {GLL) through the Lelsure Services Contract
(LSC). This Is up from 1.4 million visits in 2022/23, which reflects the opening of Lee Valley Ice Centre in June 2023.

The Authority’s financial strategy is embodied in its Strategic Business Plan. The Plan is designed to deliver the vision of
creating a world class leisure destination. The Plan Is underpinned by a financlal strategy that aims to optimise the use of
financial resources to meet business objectives. The strategy includes malntalning a strong financlal position, which these
accounts demonstrate, A new Business Plan to cover the period from 2024-2027 approved In October 2023. This plan sets
out service objectives and business priorities for the coming period and Is underpinned by the Medium Term Financial Plan
{MTFP).

There are four key themes within the Business Plan which will drive our activity over the next three years:

Our Environment Policy

Continuous investment In the park’s Infrastructure across sport, lelsure and open space

Optimising the impact of the Authority’s 4,500 acre estate

Securing funding streams through emerging Blodiversity Net Gain opportunities and other nature conservation
opportunities

The statutory power to increase the levy (which for 2023/24 was 34.1% levied of the maximum chargeable], the Medium
Term FInanclal Plan, the ongoing risk management and internal control framework, annual, weekly and daily evaluation of
the Authority’s cash flow ensure the LVRPA Is, and remalns, a golng congern. Senior Management have, and will contlnue to
regularly assess that the Authority Is a going concern and this will be subject to the external auditor testing under ISA 570
requirements.

The following paragraphs set out the most significant matters in the accounts, such as the Authority’s overall financial
position.



Expenditure compared to budget

The 2023/24 budget was set In January 2023. The original budget was set with a deficlt/use of reserves of £0.456m, which
Included a contingency against increased cost and income reduction of £0.6m. Actual net spending on facllitles and services
was a £1.970m surplus, which Included a £1.81m refund from HMRC relating to our non-business VAT claim.

Budgst compared to actual

Budget Actual
2023/24 £'000s £'000s
Net operating expenditure 12,492 11,934
Other operational Income 0 (1,818)
Levy on local authoritles (10,647 (10.647)
Net general fund deflcit/(surplus) 1,845 {531)
Total financing costs [1,389) {1.429]
Movement in unallocated reserve 456 {1,970)

Capltal Investmant

Capital Investment totalled £3.2m, of which £1.6m related to the redevelopment of the Lee Vailey Ice Centre. This was
financed by receipts (£0.8m), revenue contributions and grants (£0.6m) with the remalnder (£1.8m) as a debt funded from
external borrowIng.

At the end of the year the Authority had unallocated general reserves of £5.0m, and earmarked revenue reserves of £1.8m,
and capltal reserves of £9.9m.

London Olympics 2012

In July 2005, London was awarded the 2012 Olympic Games. Under the Olymplc arrangements entered into with the
Authority, some of the Authority’s land and assets were used and developed. The Olymplc Games were held durlng the
summer of 2012 and the Authorlty retalns some contingent liabilities.

Velopark

The Authority continues to retaln a contingent llabllity of up to £5.25m In relatlon to the lottery funding agreement between
the Authorlty, Sport England and the Olympic Development Agency (ODA). In addItlon, a contingent liability of £2m exists in
relation to a funding agreement with the London Marathon Trust for legacy works. LVRPA pald £3.5m during 2012/13 as Its
contribution to the construction of the Velopark. The contingent llabllities are shown In note 37,

Other Olymple Agreements
Third Supplemental Agreement

This agreement was completed on the 7 February 2013 following recelpt of both Secretary of State and Sport England
consents. The agreement covers arrangements for utilitles and Individual agreements for substation leases and high voltage
cables are still belng finallsed. All substation leases have been completed together with one of the easements. There is one
easement still outstanding which will be finalised as soon as the final documents are agreed. This Is an on-going matter and
Is outside the Authority’s control as the contact is awalted from the utllity company. This will have no Impact on the accounts.

Lee Valley White Water Centre

This asset was transferred to the Authority on 17 December 2010 and the depreclated replacement cost Is valued at £22m.
The Authorlty has a contingent liabllity of up to £900,000 in relation to its lottery funding agreement with Sport England. In
addition, the Authority also has a contingent liabllity of up to £4m In relation to [ts funding agreement originally with the East
of England Development Agency (EEDA). Since the closure of the EEDA, the benefits of this funding agreement rest with the
Department for Business, Innovation and Skills. The Authority enhanced this facllity further in 2013/14 by Investing £6.4m
with contributions from the British Canoe Unlon (£0.8m), Sport England {£0.8m) and a reinstatement contrlbution from
LOCOG (£0.7m). The Authority entered Into a varlation of Its lottery funding agreement with Sport England to cover the
addltlonal amount of funding which increased the total contingent liabllity.



The land and building valuation of this asset has been included In the statements. The contingent liabilities are shown In note
37.

Parklands In Queen Ellzabeth Olymplc Park

The Authority has agreed that two separate plots of land In the North of the Park will be leased back to the LLDC at a
peppercorn rent (£1) for twenty-flve years and at £20,000 per annum for forty years respectively, and wlll place an obligation
on the LLDC in relation to the parklands lease to carry out grounds malntenance of the parklands which has been estimated
by the LLDC to be up to £25,000 per annum. The area of land which has been leased for the forty-year period at £20,000 per
annum has been independently valued at £320,000 and this lease was completed in 2013. The lease of the land In the North
Parklands for the 25-year period was completed in February 2018.

Lee Valley Ice Centre Redevelopment

The redevelopment of the Lee Valley lce Centre inte a new twin-pad Ice rink was given full planning consent on 20 November
2020. The procurement exerclse for construction of the venue commenced In May 2020, and after full evaluation and
clarification, Members agreed the award of the contract with Buckingham Group Contracting Ltd in Aprll 2021 (A/4301/21).
The construction process agreed was for a single stage, not continuity of Ice, to commence In July 2021 and complete late In
2022, This was identified as the cheapest option, offered less overall risk, and saved at least 12 months on the build
programme. Members also agreed that, subject to the provislons in the Local Government Act 2003, the Authority would
seek to borrow up to £30m to fund the construction programme.

The venue closed to the public on 27 June 2021, with further club and coaches’ use permitted up to 18 July 2021. From this
period, the strlp out of the bullding was due to commence, and the slte was formally handed over to BGCLon 16 August 2021.
Construction contlnued throughout 2021 and 2022, with practical completion and handover of site from constructor to
landlord occurring on 10 May 2023, The venue opened to the public on 17 June 2023 under the management of GLL, with a
number of snagging ltems and defects to be remedied. BGCL entered into adminlstration on 4 September 2023 with Rob
Parker, Jon Roden and Kevin Coates of Grant Thornton UK LLP being appointed as Jolnt Adminlstrators. Members approved
the recommendations within Paper E/820/23 to make a claim for the outstanding liguidated damages owed to the Authority,
terminate the contract with BGCL and, following the termination, where possible to require BGCL's sub-contractors to remedy
defects under collateral warranties and to employ third parties to undertake any remaining outstanding snagging and defect
works.

Pension Scheme

The Authority is a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by the Local Pensions Partnership (for
the London Pensions Fund Authority). The net liability (le the amount by which the penslons liabilities exceed its assets) affects
the Authority's net worth as recorded In the balance sheet. However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean
that the Authorlty’s financlal position remalns healthy. The deficit on the pension scheme will be made good by Increased
contributlons over the employees’ remaining working life, as assessed by the scheme actuary. The full triennial valuation of
the scheme was completed in October 2022 — this showed the Authority had a surplus of £9.0m (117.0% funded) compared
to a deficit at the last triennial valuation of £0.55m {98.6% funded).

Management of the Venues under the Lelsure Service Agreement

In February 2015 {paper A/4201/15) Members approved entering into the Leisure Services Contract {the Contract)
commencing on 1 April 2015 between the Lee Valley Regional Park Authority and the Lee Valley Lelsure Trust Limited trading
as Vibrant Partnerships (the Trust). The contract was for a five year period to establish a “sound” operational profile before
going through a full market testing exercise. All decisions relating to this process were made by the full Authority.

The Authority completed a procurement process for the re-let of the six sports venues from 1 April 2020, but followIng a legal
challenge made to that process, the Authority took the decislon (Paper A/4278/20) to bring the sporting venues under its
direct management on the expiry of the contract on 31 March 2020. In October 2019 the Authority had already decided
(Paper Af4273/15) to bring back the eight smaller (non-sporting Lelsure Service Contract (LSC)) venues back under Its direct
management on the expiry of the contract with the Trust as these fitted with the new business pricritles and generated a
positive financial return for the Authority.

Initially this was anticipated that this arrangement would be for a period of six-months, but due to the Covid-19 pandemic,
Autharity members agreed an extension untll 31 March 2022. The Authority entered into a 10 year Lelsure Services Contract
with GLL for the management for the six sports venues from 1 April 2022.



The LSC saw the Authority making a management fee payment to GLL for the first two years of the contract, until the new lce
Centre achieved full operation from Aprll 2024, from when GLL started paying the Authority. In additfon, the two partles
agreed a price and consumption utllity risk share agreement for the first two years, which will now continue from year three.
Both parties will conduct a benchmarking exercise based on the consumption for 2023/24, and forecasts for 2024/25,
incorporating planned investment efficiencles, which will form the basls for the future year's agreement, subject to annual
updates.

Land and Property Strategy

The Land & Property Review Working Group was established at the Executive Committee meeting on 17 December 2015 to
conslder and develop a proposed Corporate Land and Property Strategy for consideration and approval by full Authority.
The terms of reference for the Land & Property Review Working Group were approved as follows:

To review the land and property portfalio in support of dellvery of the Authority's statutory remit and overall objectives
To review adopted land acquisition policles

Develop a land and property acquisition/disposal strategy within the parameters of the Lee Valley Regional Park Act 1566
(the Park Act)

The alm of the Working Group Is to review the Authority's approach to acquisition and disposal and to consider a fresh
approach with the development of a Corporate Land and Property Strategy. In addition to the above It Is an opportunity to
look at sites which are not delivering benefit for the Reglonal Park. The disposal of properties may also reduce revenue costs
as maintenance obligations for some areas of land would be reduced. Conversely acquisition of land may Increase revenue
costs for the malntenance and management of the land.

The Authority has generally adopted a cautious approach for any disposals based on prevalling Counsel's oplnion at the time
and Independent advice prior to any disposal of land. More recent advice has explored a more flexible approach, in particular,
to disposal where land Is no longer required for the purposes of any of the Authority’s functlons. This has the potentfal for
ralsing capital for enabling development and/or opportunity for enhancement of existing open space and/or opening of
currently closed land within the Regional Park. At the appropriate time each area of land is brought forward for a declslon by
the Executive Committee and/or Authority and Is reflected In the balance sheet accordingly.

Borrowing and Capital Funding

The Authorlty has the facillty to borrow funds for capital expenditure from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) and other
local authorities, and has utllised these Institutlons for funding of the Ice Centre Development.

The Capltal Financing Requirement measures the underlying need to borrow for capital (not revenue) purposes. It does not
necessarlly mean that borrowing will be undertaken. The following capital financing requirements are based upon the value
of the Authority's depreciated value of fixed assets less provisions set aslde for loan repayment

2022/23 2023/24 202425 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
| Actual Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate |
[ LVRPACFR | £37.8m £32.4m | £33.0m £31.8m £30.8m £29.9m

Any new borrowing In the future must be self-funded, for example via efflciency savings, levering in external funding, new
income streams or through the levy. With the redevelopment of the Lee Valley lce Centre, the Authority have needed to
arrange external borrowing, albelt as short-term leans during the construction stage. The remaining capltal expenditure has
been funded from the Authorlty’s accumulated cash balances. At the balance sheet date of 31 March 2024, the Authorlty had
short-term external borrowlng of £25m.

Economic Climate

The economic climate has, and will continue to impact on the Public Sector purse and particularly the finances of the
Authority. The Authority set its annual budget in the context of the business priorities that were appropriate at the time. The
assumptions behind this forecast are reviewed annually; the medium term financial forecast Is restated and then approved
by Members. The Authority is consclous of the financial pressures faced by the levied authorities and the spending
assessments that Impact upon them.

The Authority set Its budget and levy for 2024/25 In January 2024 {Paper A/4346/24 Authority Meeting 18 January 2024) In
response to the continued high energy prices, and the compounding effect of high inflation, which whilst having reduced to



4.0%, had been as high as 11.1% during the prior year. These all had an Impact on our expenditure over the prior year, and
with forecast only for a slow reduction In inflation over the coming year, meant that we were looking at a deflcit on our
budget of around £0.3m. Whilst we had Increased fees and charges for the coming year, as well as expecting Increased
investment returns on cash balances held, we recognised that as well as costs Increasing, we need to review the operational
structure at our marinas to ensure they were operating safely and efficiently.

We also recognised that the Utility Risk Share — where the Authority take the price risk, and GLL the consumptlon risk - we
have In respect of the LSC would need to continue beyond the first two years, as long term forecasts an energy costs are now
not possible. This means that rather than the fulf risk (and expected lower prices) would have passed to GLL from Year 3, they
now sit with both parties, and that the Authority will be llable for higher costs than Initlally envisaged at the commencement
of the LSC.

Furthermore, the Authority continues to invest in our venues and open spaces, which along with the redevelopment of the
twin-pad Ice Centre, which opened In June 2023, has or will see, investment into all the other sporting venuas with
replacement of lighting systems, as well as upgrades to sporting facilitles, Open spaces have a major investment programme
too, which currently includes works at Middlesex Filter Beds, footpath improvements at St Pauls Field, and major renovation
and desliting works at East Indla Dock Basin, which will require external funding assistance to fully deliver.

With this all in mind, Members agreed to increase the Levy by 3% for the financial year 2024/25 to enable us to deliver a
balanced budget. The use of reserves to fund a gap was not thought best practice, and that we should maintain a minimum
general reserve balance of £3m, with a recommended level at, or above £4m to allow for any short term annual fluctuations
that may materialise.

The Authority Is continuing a robust plan of Income generation and major development projects across the Park to deliver its
remit and reduce the rellance on the levy. A new Business Plan for 2024-2027 approved in autumn 2023. This sets out our
aspirations for the Park In the coming years, and how we will manage this signlficant asset for the benefit of all, be that |ocal,
regional, national or international.

Revenue Reserves

The Authority's current Reserves Pollcy states that the Authorlty should malntaln a minimum general reserve balance of £3m,
with a recommended level at, or above £4m to allow for any short term annual fluctuations that may materialise. This was
approved at the Annual Budget and levy setting meeting of the full Authority on 18 January 2024. The indlvidual usable
reserves are explalned below:

General Fund

The unallocated general fund reserves currently stand at £5.0m, The total of all revenue reserves, included any earmarked
reserves, such as for repairs renewals, or self-insurance, currently stands at £6.8m.

Earmarked Reserves

The Authority maintains renewal and repalr funds to replace equipment and for major repairs to buildings or structures that
cannot be funded in one year from service revenue budgets.

An insurance fund is also maintained to self-Insure certain risks that are not otherwise covered by the insurance policfes of
the Authority. For example, storm damage and insurance excesses on existing policies.

Capital Receipts Reserve

There is a balance of £9,9m on this reserve Initlally due the sale of the optfon land at Olymple Park but more recently through
sale of land at Mile and Langley Nursery. The Authority’s policy of fully financing capital expenditure when it [s incurred,
except In specific agreed circumstances {eg redevelopment of the Ice Centre) means that without direct revenue
contributions, capital reserves will decrease in line with expenditure. The going concern statement (note 39} sets out the
forecast reserves balances for the next three years, and forecasts a reduction in usable capital reserves to £6.9m by the end
of 2024/24 financial year.

Governance



The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) highlights the major risks and uncertainties the Authority faces in the years ahead
and recognising the impact of the London 2012 Olympics legacy on the Authority as it continues to establish the legacy
facilities within Its normal business operating environment and more recently the significant Impact of the economic
environment, high Interest rates, and the assoclated cost of living crisis, on the business operations of the Authority and
therefore a major source of its financlal income. The AGS sets out the risks and opportunities the Authority faces in managing
Its obligations for the Park, built venues, Infrastructure and open spaces and considers the Impact of the ongoing poor
economic climate and demonstrates the Authority’s response to the pressure on the public purse.

The Accounts are produced in the format stipulated by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) in
accordance with best accounting practice,

CIPFA’s recommended accounting practice complies, with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) subject to
appropriate agreed variations for Local Authoritles.

The accounts conslst of:

s the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: This statement shows the accounting cost In the year of
providing services In accordance with generally accepted accounting practices;

e the Balance Sheet: The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and llabllitles
recognised by the Authority. The net assets of the Authority (assets less llablliities) are matched by the reserves held
by the Authorlty;

¢ the Movement in Reserves Statement: This statement shows the movement In the year on the different reserves
held by the Authority;

a Cash Flow Statement: This shows the total cash we recelved and how we used it; and
a Statement of Accounting Policies: These describe the main principles used to prepare the accounts.

To assist general readers of these accounts, we have explained some of the main technical terms In notes to the accounts
and In a glossary.

The unaudited accounts were issued on 31 May 2024.



STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES
The Authority’s responsibllities
The Authority must

® arrange for the proper administration of its financial affalrs and ensure that one of its officers is responsible for
administering those affairs —that officer Is currently the Section 151 Officer;

® must manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguarding Its assets; and
approve the Statement of Accounts.

The Section 151 Officers responsibilities

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for preparing the Authority's statement of accounts In accordance with the CIPFA Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom {The Code). The Code requires that the accounts present a
true and fair view of the financial position at the accounting date and income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March
2024,

In preparing this statement of accounts, the Section 151 Officer:

«  Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
e Made judgements and estimates that were responsible and prudent; and
* Complied with The Code,

The Section 151 Officer has also:

® Kept proper accounting records that were up to date; and
® Taken reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

| certify that these statements of account present a true and falr view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March
2024 and the Income and expenditure for the 2023/24 financlal year,

Kevin Bartle
Section 151 Officer
31 May 2024
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2023/24
Scope of responsibility

The Authority is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted In accordance with the law and proper standards, that
public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Authority
does not have a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 In the same way that local authorities do to make arrangements
to secure continuous improvement when exercising Its functions, having regard to a combination of economy, efficlency and
effectlveness; but it considers and adopts these elements as a matter of best practice.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Authority is responsible for putting In place proper arrangements for the
governance of its affairs and for ensuring that there Is a sound system of Internal control which facilitates the effective
exercise of its functions, as described In the Narrative Report included with in the final accounts, and Includes arrangements
for the management of risk.

The Authority has adopted a code of corporate governance, which Is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE
Framework for Good Governance in Local Government. This statement explains how the Authority has complled with the
Code and also meets the requirements of Regulation 6{1)(b} of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 In relation to the
publication of an Annual Governance Statement.

The purpose of the governance framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes for the direction and control of the Authority and its
activities for which It Is accountable to its stakeholders and the wider community.

The system of internal control Is a significant part of that framework and [s designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It
cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achleve policies, alms and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongolng process designed to identify and
prioritise the risks likely to impair the achievement of the Authority's policies, aims and objectives; to evaluate the likelihood
of those risks belng reallsed and the Impact should they be reallsed, and to manage them efficlently, effectively and
economically.

The governance framework has been in place at the Authority for the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of
approval of the statement of accounts.

The governance environment

The Lee Valley Reglonal Park Authority {LVRPA) is an award winning and leading leisure organisation. It has a statutory duty
under the Lee Valley Reglonal Park Act (1966) to develop the 10,000 acre Park as a regional destinatlon. Our Business Plan
2024-2027, approved in October 2023 (Paper Af4345/23) sets out our Vision, Mission, and Values, and sets out our strategic
business objectives and targets.

These are then translated into more specific alms and objectives in the service improvement plans which are prepared
annually and, where objectlves are complex, included as part of the corporate risk register as part of the risk management
framework. The achlevement of these objectives is monltored by the Senlor Management Team, and the Executive, Audit
and Scrutiny committees.

The Authority does not have directly elected Members but Members appointed to the Authority by local councils. Members
are responsible for setting policles and priorities and for the efficient and effective use of resources. The behaviour of
Authority Members Is regulated through a Model Code of Conduct made by statutory instrument, which Is adopted and
regulated within thelr own Counclls’ systems and which is supported by a Members' planning code of good practice within
this Authority. The Authority has an approved Conflict of Interests/Loyaltles Protocol which sits as an Appendix to Standing
Orders. Employees are also subject to a Code of Conduct and a number of specific policies {e.g. on whistle blowing, IT usage,
bullying and harassment) which are set out in the Employae Handbook. Advice on these matters is embedded through on-
going training.

The Authority Is not required to have a formal constitution but has adopted a traditional local authority style committee
model. Poilcy and declsion making are facllitated by a ciear framework of delegation set out In the Lee Valley Regional Park
Act 1966, the Authorlty’s Standing Orders and FInanclal Regulations. This sets out, among other things, where responsibllity
lies for developing and dellvering policy, and for taking decisions. The Standing Orders and Financlal Regulations provide for
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some delegation to officers but within a policy framework lald down by the Authority, and with the more significant executive
dedslons being taken by the elected Members of the Executive Commiitee and the Full Authorlty. The Authorlty Is also able
to hold Its decislon making meetings In person and remotely (both fully remote and hybrid).

Compliance with established policles, procedures, laws and regulations is ensured by the requirement in the Standing Orders
to give the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Offlcer and the Chlef Finance Officer the opportunity to comment on every report
submitted to a declsion making body. The Monitoring Officer has a legal duty to ensure the lawfulness of decislon making.

Risk management is embedded in the Authority through a Corporate Risk Management Framework (Paper AUD/126/22)
which includes the requirement to Identify strategic and operational risks, assess those risks for likelihood and Impact, Identlfy
mitigating controls and allocate responstbllity for those controls, The Authority maintains and reviews a reglster of Its
business risks, linking them to strategic business objectives and assigning ownership for each risk. Risk management
awareness is an Integral part of the Autherity's employee/management competency framework. Risk Management is led on
at Director level and matters of risk for the Authority are reported directly to the Audit Committee who receive reports on
risk management at each meeting and who take appropriate action to ensure that corporate business risks are up-to-date;
belng actively managed; and agree the soundness of the Authority’s risk management arrangements.

The Authority’s programme for dellvering continucus Improvement In its services is set out in the annual service plan and
driven by the Business Priorities. Actlons for Improvement are drawn from a variety of sources including Internal audit; the
Authority's own service reviews, health and safety audits, and external inspections such as those undertaken by Quest and
Green Flag. An annual assessment of performance, detalling future performance targets, Is set out In the Scrutiny Scorecard
Reports agreed three times a year by the Scrutiny Committee.

Section 151 responsibliities are carrled out through a Service Level Agreement with the London Borough of Enfield (LBE) in
conjunction with the Head of Finance role In the Authority. The Executive Director of Resources (LBE) Is designated as the
responsible officer for the adminlstration of the Authority’s financial affalrs under section 151 of the Local Government Act
1972 and section 11 (1) of the Lee Valley Reglonal Park Act 1966. This Includes ensuring the lawfulness and financial prudence
of decision making; providing advice, particularly on financlal Impropriety, publiclty and budget Issues; giving financial
Information; and acting as the Authority’s money laundering, whistle blowing and anti-fraud, bribery & corruption reporting
officer. Pollcies relating to whistle blowing anti-fraud, bribery & corruption were approved by the full Authority In October
2023 (Paper A/4342/23). This [s supported by Authority wide awareness training for all staff and elected Members. The
Authorlty’s financlal management arrangements conform with the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the
Role of the Chief Financial Officer In Local Government (2016).

The Authority has a performance management regime through which quallty of service is measured through corporate
performance Indicators which In turn are reported through the Scrutiny Scorecard. This is monitored by the Senlor
Management Team and scrutinised three times a year by the Scrutiny Committee.

Review of effectiveness

The Authority has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance framework
Including the system of Internal control. The review of effectiveness Is Informed by the work of managers within the Authority
who have responsibllity for the development and malntenance of the governance environment, recommendations from the
Annual Internal Auditor's report, comments and recommendations made by the external auditors and other reviews by
Independent agencies.

The terms of reference for the Audlt Committee requires it to monitor and revlew the Authority’s system(s) of Internal
financial contral and authorise/approve the Annual Gavernance Statement; it also monitors and reviews the Authority’s
Health & Safety and risk management policles and programmes.

The Internal Auditor reports to the Authority’s Chief Executive Officer and Corporate Director, but In order to ensure
Independence has direct access to the, Monltoring Officer, the Chalr of Audit Committee and the Audit Committee [tself.

The Internal Auditor provides an Independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal control,
which Is Incorporated in the Annual Internal Audit Report to the Audit Committee. The Annual Internal Audit Report for
2023/24, which was presented to the Audit Commlttee on 20 June 2024 (Paper AUD/149/24), sets out the assurance provided
on the Authority’s Internal control systems and provides detall on the speclific audits that were conducted over the past year.



The current Risk Management Strategy was approved by the Audit Committee on 23 June 2022 (Paper AUD/126/22). The
Strategic Risk Register has undergone regular review and monitoring this year by the Audit Committee and any changes to
the risk register are reported on to the Executive Committee to ensure they are also aware of any new risks that are added
or any other amendments that are made,

The Audit Committee also ensure a robust management framework for Health & Safety is maintained. The Authority
appointed Right Directions Limited as thelr new Health and Safety service provider for a seven year contract, commencing in
Cctober 2022. The new contract Is for a full and comprehensive service Including proactive and reactive support, dellvery of
training, event support and audits with improvement recomrmendations. Authority operated sites achieved an 75% approval
rating during the year, which although a reduction from the previous year’s score, was the first full year of audlts by the new
provider and the fall was expected due to the more forensic aud|t approach now adopted. Health and Safety matters were
reported separately to the Audit Committee in the Annual Health & Safety report to the Audit Committee on 20 June 2024
(Paper AUD/148/24).

Senlor Managers continue to review the processes and controls they have In place to aliow them to achieve thelr service
objectives. Reporting on financial and performance management Information to the Executive Committee and the Scrutiny
Committee has taken place over the course of the year. Based on the Information provided during the year and reviews of
data quallty, controls can be seen to be satisfactorily In place.

The review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by:

The work of managers within the Authority;

The work of the Internal Auditor;

The work of the Health & Safety contractor;

The work of Corporate Risk Management;

Performance Management Information; and

The External Auditors In their Annual Audit Results report.

The results of the review of the Authority’s system of Internal control have concluded that It is satisfactory and effective.
Slgnificant Governance Issues

The Authority received significant assets as a result of the London 2012 Olympics. The London Legacy Development
Corporation completed the legacy transformation works at the Lee Valley VeloPark, and Lee Valley Hockey & Tennls between
April 2013 and May 2014. These assets were transferred to the Authority and are recognised in the accounts. These additional
asset transfers are valued in excess of £120m, and with that comes a responsibility to manage and operate these as
economlcally and efficiently as possible and In line with the Lottery Funding Agreements with Sport England that the Authority
has entered Into.

The external audit of the Authority’s final accounts for 2020/21 was only completed in October 2023. There was a delay in
commencing the audit due to External Auditor capacity Issues, an issue which has been felt across the publlc sector following
the Covid-19 pandemic. During the audit process an issue was Identified with historic asset valuations, which has required
significant recalculation. This work delayed the production of the 2021/22 accounts and subsequently those of 2022/23.
However, there was a consultation process led by DLUHC into resclving the delays to local government audits which
concluded in March 2024, The outcome Is yet to be announced, but it is likely that all outstanding audits up to 2022/23 will
need to be completed by 30 September 2024 and this will result In certain disclaimers, or quallficatlons of publlc sector
accounts, which may have a detrimental reputational impact throughout the sector.

The Authority’s existing governance structure was put In place in 2009, It was reviewed In July 2010 and 2015 to ensure
management and decislon making processes remained robust, relevant and fit for purpose. Members continue to review the
committee structures on an annual basls at the AGM ~the most recent review In July 2023 (Paper A/4337/23) although this
will be reviewed again shortly at the next AGM In July 2024. In support of the Full Authority there are Executive, Audlt, Scrutiny
and Regeneratlon and Planning committees covering all areas of the Regional Park. Relevant Member working groups are
established annually and cover Park wide strategic initiatives as well as specific major projects and initiatives.

Members agreed to the establishment of an Independent Remuneration Panel (JRP} to carry out a review of the remuneration
of the roles of Chairman and Vice Chairman at full Authority in July 2022 (Paper A/4320/22). The IRP was established met on
21 July 2023 to carry out thelr review and provide a recommendation on the level of remuneration for the Chalrman and Vice
Chalrman. This was reported to Authorlty In October 2023 {A/4343/23) and approved by Members.



Accounting pollcies, estimates and assumptions are reviewed each year by the Head of Finance and approved by the Audit
Committee (Paper AUD/141/24), to ensure they are relevant and up-to-date and that they accord with best practice.

The Authority set its budget and levy for 2023/24 in January 2023 (Paper A/4329/23 Authority Meeting 19 January 2023), In
response to the energy price Increases, and general inflation that was 11% at the time and continued to rise. Forecasts were
that we would see Increased costs against the base budget of £2,6m, malnly from an additional £1.6m energy costs, additional
costs relating to our external borrowling requirements, as well as Implications arising from the delayed opening of the
redeveloped lce Centre from October 2022 to June 2023, Our general reserves were already below the approved minimum
level, sitting at £2.9m, and so without further mitigation we would see ourselves with little room to support ourselves. Cash
reserves were £10.8m at 31 March 2023, due In the maln from a capltal recelpt of £2.7m recelved In January 2023, but this
was subsequently all earmarked to offset our borrowing requirement and part-finance or capital programme.

Officers were able to identify £1.9m of savings relating to the 2023/24 financial year, from a comblinatlon of additional income,
service efficiencies, and short-term reduction In contributions to other earmarked reserves, of which nelther of the latter
would be sustalnable In the long term. Factoring In the need for contingency against further energy price rises, and impacts
on income, still left us with a shortfall of £1.3m. Authorlty members took the very difflcult declsion to significantly increase
the levy for 2023/24 by 9%, giving us a further £0.9m, but still meaning a potentlal reduction in our general reserves of £0.5m.

We have been fortunate In recelving a refund of overpald VAT which relates to a recently agreed challenge from Local
Authorities In England and Wales, as well as separate cases relating to Scotiand and Northern Ireland, with regards to
exemptlon of sporting income, and non-distortion in favour of the LAs. For us, this relates to historic VAT paid when the sports
venues were in Authority operation and covers the period 2010-2015 and from 2020-2022.

Along with the VAT refund, we have achleved an overall net revenue surplus of £2.0m in 2023/24, which has allowed our
unallocated general fund to increase to £5.0m, rather than the budgeted reduction to £2.5m.

Furthermore, the Authority continues to Invest In our venues and open spaces, which along with the redevelopment of the
twin-pad Ice Centre, which opened In July 2023, has or wlill see, investment Into all the other sporting venues with
replacement of lighting systems, as well as upgrades to sporting facllities. Open spaces have a major Investment programme
too, which currently Includes works at Middlesex Fliter Beds, footpath Improvements at St Pauls Fleld, and major renovatlon
and desliting works at East India Dock Basin, which will require external funding assistance to fully deliver.

The Authority sets the annual budget in the context of the business prioritles. The assumptions behind this forecast are
reviewed annually; the medium term financial forecast Is restated and then approved by Members. The Authority Is conscious
of the financlal pressures faced by the levied authorities and the spending assessments that impact upon thern. Officers and
Members are committed to providing on-going savings and efficlencles to achleve economy and efficlency through the best
use of public funds whilst delivering its own core objectives set out in the draft medium term business plan and statutory
role. Consideration of the levy in future years will be subject to inflation, business risks and other economic factors prevailing
at the time.

The Authority’s approved medium term business priorities ensures It continues to meet existing and new corporate objectives
that are emerging and this has fed into the medium term financlal planning of the Authorlty. Having established the
operatlonal model for its 6 sporting venues, the Authorlty will, as part of the new business plan priorities, continue a rolling
review of service areas including Its in-house operational venues with the alm of determining the most cost efficient and
effective delivery mechanisms.

Reporting on the Authority’s use of Public Funds demonstrates to stakeholders and Council Tax payers how thelr money is
spent. Closing the accounts In a timely manner and receiving an unqualified Audit opinion provide information and evidence
to those stakeholders about how the Authority works.

Shaun Dawson
Chief Executive
June 2024

Paul Osborn
Chairman
June 2024



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LEE VALLEY REGIONAL PARK AUTHORITY

The independent auditor’s report will be Included within the Statement of Accounts at the concluslon of the audit.
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LEE VALLEY PARK
MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

General Capital Capital Grants Total Usable Unusable Total
Fuiraf Recalpts Unappllad Raservas Ressrvas Reservas
Mate £t £000s D0 0008 £000s E0D0Y
Balance as at 31 March 2023 0
Movement In Reserves 2023/24
(Surplus) / deficit on provision of services - -
Other comprehensive income & expanditure - ]
Total comprehanshva Incoma and expenditure 4] 0
Ad)ustments between accounting basls and
funding basis under regulations L) 6,581 4,955
Increase/decrease In 2023/24 6,581 4,934
Balance carried forward
Genaral Capital Capltal @rants Total Uzable Unussbie Total
Fund Recaipts Unappliad Rasarvas Rasarvas Razerves
Moto £000s £000s £0005 ] £000s £000s
Balanca as st 31 March 2022 0
Movamant in Reserves 2022/23
{Surplus) / deficit on provislon of services 1,829 1,823 1,823
Othet comprehensive Income & expendlture - - o
Total comprehensive Income and expanditure 1823 0 0 1,823
AdJustments betwean accounting basis and
funding basls under ragulations 4 0 6,104 1
Incraase/decrense In 202223 659 0
Balance carrled forward o
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LEE VALLEY PARK

BALANCE SHEET
202324 2022/23
Heita £ £000s

Property, plant and equipment

Land and bulidings 9 200,881 173,362

Vehiclas, plant, furniture and equipment El a76 547

Infrastructure ] 1,668 1,735

Community assets ] 35,031 34,878

Assets undar construction L) 0 27,747
Investment properties ] 6,136 6,137
Blologlcal assets H 149 Ery)
Total non cusrent assats 244,341 244,733
Lohg tarm debtors 872 874
Long term assats 72 a4
Short term Imestments ] 10,350 7,019
Inventories 12 228 308
Short term debtars EE] 2,197 3,296
Paymaents In advance 319 217
Cash and cash eguivalants % 4,850 3,816
Current ussats 18,014 14,656
Short term creditors 15
Recelpts In advance
Short Term Borrowing 36
Currant lnbilitles
Long term borrowing 3
Net pension liability 4,191 183
Revenue grants recelved n advance
Capital grants recelved In advance F:] ]
Long term Rabfiltes
NET ASSETS 234,075 230,046
Usable rasarves

General fund 5

Capital recelpts rasarve 3

Capltal grants unapplied 5 [}
Total usahle reserves
Unusable reserves

Revaluation reserve It

Pansions rusarve ]

Capltal adjustment account 17

Defarred capital recelpts 17

Short-term aceumulating compensated absencas account 17 484 447
Total unusable resarves
TOTAL RESERVES

Thase draft stataments were authorised for ksuw by the Sectlon 151 officer on 31 May 2024.




LEE VALLEY PARK

CASHFLOW STATEMENT
202374 2022/23

LT £000:
Net surplus / (deficit) on the provision of sarvices 21
Adjust nat surplus of deficit on tha provision of services for investing and financing activides
Proceeds from the sale of non-current assets [
Praceeds from the sale of blological assets 4 0
Adjust nat surplus of deficit on the provision of sarvices for non-cash movements
Depreciation/impairment of praperty, plant and squipment ) 3,460 3,508
Revalustion of non-current assats ] ] 51
Changes In the fair value of Investment properties 9 0 28
Changes In tha fair value of blological assets 9 40
Capital grants eredited on recognition ]
Pansion fund adjustments = 3 2,800
{intrease)/dacrease In long term debtors 2 2
{increase)/decrease In stock 12 20
{increase)/decrease In dabtors u 1,099
[increase)/decreasa (n paymants In advance 45
Incrense/{dacraase) (n recelpts In advance 14 266
Increase/[decrease) In creditors 8 3,382
Nat cush flows from opersting activites 6,950
Investing activities
Purchase of non curment assets ]
Purchase of blologlcal assets ] o
Procands from the sale of non-current assets L] 207 7.556
Repayment/(purchase) of long and short-term Investments "]
Nat cash outflow from Investing activities
Financing sctivities
Recelpts of short- and long-term borrowing 0 15,000
Revenue grants recatved 85 97
Capltal grants recalvad 399 225
Not cash outfiow from financing activities anz 222
Nat incraasa or decreass in cash and cash equivalants 1,042 n
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting pariod " 3,816 3444
Cash and cash eguivalents at the and of the raporting period 4,880 3,816
Cash and cash aquivalents st the end of the reporting perlod
Cash and cash equivalents 4,860 3,816
Bank ovardraft "] 0
Cash and cash equivalents 4,850 3,816




NOTE1
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General Princlples

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2023/24 financial year and its position at the
year-end of 31 March 2024. The Authority is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2015. These require the Statement of Accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting
practices. These practices primarily comprise of the Code of Practice on Loeal Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2023/24, supported by Internatlonal Financlal Reperting Standards (IFRS).

The accounting convention adopted In the Statement of Accounts is princlpally historical cost, modified by the revaluation
of certain assets.

Heritage Assets

Heritage assets are assets are held and malntained principally for their contribution to knowledge and culture and are
Intended to be preserved In trust for future generations because of their cultural, environmental or historical associations.
Provided that they meet this definition, heritage assets can include historlc buildings, civic regalia, museum collections and
works of art.

There Is no carrying amount of assets on the Balance Sheet that will be reclassifled as heritage assets. The Authority has a
number of assets that were considered to fall under the definition of herltage assets that following review will continue to
be classified as detailed below:

e Rye House Gatehouse, (Operational Asset)
*  Monastic walls at Abbey gardens (Community Asset)
e The Old MIil at Broxbourne Meadows {Community Asset)

Accruals of expenditure and Income

» Flgures shown In the financlal statements are based on the accruals concept, l.e. that income or expenditure Is
included in the year to which It relates irrespective of whether the authority has actually received the income or
incurred the expenditure,

* Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income and
expenditure on the basls of the effective interest rate for the relevant financlal instrument rather than the cash
flows fixed or determined by the contract.

s Where revenue and expenditure have been recognlised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or creditor
for the relevant amount Is recorded in the Balance Sheet, Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors
is wrltten down and a charge made to revenue for the Income that might not be collected.

Cash and cash equlvalents

Cash comprises cash In hand and deposits with any financial Institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more
than 24 hours (deposits held at call) and bank overdrafts. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid Investments with
maturities of 3 months or less at acquisition, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash. Cash equivalents are
held to meet short term liquidity requirements and have an insignificant risk of changing value.

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an Integral part of the Authority’s cash management.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are possible assets which arise from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the Authority’s control.

In accordance with the Code, they are not recognised In the accounts, rather they are disclosed as a note to the accounts
where the inflow of economic benefits or service potential is probable and can be reliably measured. Contingent assets are
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continually assessed to determine their pasition.
Contingent liabllities
Contingent liabilities are elther:

a) Possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirned only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the Authorlty’s control, or

b) Present obligatlons arising from past events, but Is not recognised because:

e Itis not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required te settie the obligation, or
e The amount of the abligation cannot be measured with sufficlent reliabllity.

In accordance with the Code, materlal contingent liabllities are not recognised within the accounts as an ltem of
expenditure, rather, they are disclosed as a note to the accounting statements. Contingent lfabllities are subject to a
continual assessment to determine thelr position.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include such benefits as
wages and salarles, paid annual leave and pald sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (eg cars) for current
employees and are recognised as an expense for services In the year in which employees render service to the Authority.

The code requires the Authority to make an accrual In Its accounts at year end for any annual leave and fiexible working
entitlement eamed but not taken by employees at the end of the financial year - to the extent that employees are
permitted to carry forward annual leave and flexitime to the following year.

The accrual Is made at the salary rates applicable In the following accounting year, being the perlod In which the employee
takes the henefit. The accrual Is charged to surplus or deficit on the provision of services, but then reversed out through the
movement In reserves statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year In which the holiday
absence occurs.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to terminate an officer’s employment
before the normal retirement date or an officer’s declsion to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals
basis to the appropriate service or, where applicable, to the Non Distrlbuted Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Authority can no ionger withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the
Authorlty recognises costs for a restructuring

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to
be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or pensioner In the year, not the amount
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement In Reserves Statement, appropriations are
required to and from the Penslons Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination
beneflts and replace them with debits for the cash pald to the penslon fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable
but unpaid at the year-end.

Pension costs

The Authority participates In one scheme, the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, which Is a defined benefit final
salary scheme administered by the London Penslon Fund Authority (LPFA). The LPFA Is designated an ‘administering
authority’ within the Local Government Superannuation Regulations 1995. The LPFA malntains the fund and administers the
terms of the scheme in respect of those who participate in It. The employers contributions Is set by the Fund’s actuary
based on three-yearly actuarlal valuations.

The liabllities of the penslon fund attributable to the Authority are Included in the balance sheet on an actuarlal basls using
the projected unit method — L.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits
earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of
projected earnings for current employees.
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The assets of the pension fund attributable to the Authority are included in the balance sheet at their fair value:

quoted securities — current bid price
unquoted securities — professional estimate
unitised securities — current bid price
property ~ market value

The change in the net pension liability is analysed into the following components:
Service cost

* current service cost — the Increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year — allocated in the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement to the services for which the employees worked

» past service cost — the Increase In liabilitles arising from current year decisions whose effect relates to years of
service earned In earller years — debited to the surplus or deflcit on the provision of services in the comprehensive
Income and expendlture statement as part of non-distributed costs

e interest cost - net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), ie net Interest expense for the authority — the
change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time charged to
the financing and Investment Income and expenditure line of the comprehensive income and expenditure
statement

Remeasurements

» the return on plan assets — the annual Investment return on the fund assets attributable to the Authority,
excluding amounts included In net interest on the net defined liability (asset) - charged to the pensions reserve as
other comprehensive income and expenditure

e actuarlal gains and losses — changes In the net pensions llabllity that arise because events have not coincided with
assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions ~
deblted to the pensions reserve as other comprehensive income and expenditure

Contributions

e contributions pald to the pension fund - cash paid as employer's contributions to the pension fund In settlement
of llabllitles; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the general fund balance to be charged with the amount
payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to
the relevant accounting standards. In the movement in reserves statement, this means that there are appropriations to and
from the pensions reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits
for the cash pald to the pension fund and pensloners and any such amounts payable but unpald at the year-end. The
negative balance that arises on the penslons reserve thereby measures the beneficlal impact to the general fund of being
required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

Events after the balance sheet date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the
reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts Is authorlsed for Issue, Two types of events can be
identifled:

e those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period ~ the Statement of
Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and

e those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement of Accounts Is not
adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a materlal effect, disclosure Is made in
the notes of the nature of the events and thelr estimated financial effect.
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Events taking place after the date of authorisation for Issue are not reflected In the Statement of Accounts,
Exceptional ltems

Where materlal Income or expenditure transactions have occurred during the financial year thelr nature and amount Is
disclosed separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or In the notes to the
accounts, depending on how significant the Items are to an understanding of the Authority’s flnanclal performance.

Prior period adjustments

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change In accounting policies or to correct a materlal error. Changes in
accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. In the current and future years affected by the change and do not
glve rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes In accounting pelicies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change provides more
rellable or relevant Information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Authority’s financial
position or financial performance. Where a change Is made, It Is applled retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by
adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as If the new policy had always been applied.

Materlal errors discovered In prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and
comparative amounts for the prior period,

Financlal Instruments

Financial llabliitles are recognised on the balance sheet when the Authority becomes party to the contractual provisions of
a financlal instrument and are Inltlally measured at falr value and are carried at their amortised cost. Financial llabllities are
derecognised when the liability has been discharged, that Is, the liability has been paid or has explred.

Annual charges to the financing and Investment income and expenditure Iine in the comprehensive income and expenditure
statement for interest payable are based on carrying amount of the llabllity, multiplied by the effective rate of Interest. The
effective interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the borrowing to the
amount at which it was originally recognised.

The Authority has a mix of short-term borrowing, amounts that are repayable with 12 months of the balance sheet date,
and longer term borrowing, amounts payable over 12 months, and this will mean that the amount presented In the Balance
Sheet Is the outstanding princlpal repayable {plus accrued interest); and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement Is the amaunt payable for the year according to the loan agreement.

Galns or losses on the repurchase or early settiement of borrowing are credited and debited to the financing and
investment [ncome and expenditure line In the comprehensive income and expenditure statement In the year of repurchase
or settlement.

financlal assets are classifled based on a dlassification and measurement approach that reflects the business model for
holding the financlal assets and thelr cashflow characteristics. There are three maln classes of financial assets measured at:

s amortised cost
e falr value through profit or loss (FVPL), and

e fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) [separate accounting pollcy Is required where an authority
holds financlal Instruments at falr value through other comprehensive income].

The authority’s business model s to hold Investments to collect contractual cash flows. Flnanclal assets are therefore
classifled as amortised cost.

Financlal assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority becomas a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are Initially measured at falr value. They are subsequently
measured at thelr amortised cost. Annual credhts to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement {CIES) for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the
asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the Instrument, For most of the financlal assets held by the Autharity,
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this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet Is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrved interest)
and interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

Government grants and other contributions

Under Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards, all such grants are to be treated as revenue income as soon as any
conditions relating to the grant have been met. Where capital grants are credited to the comprehensive income and
expenditure statement, they are reversed out of the general fund balance in the movement in reserves statement. Where
the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the capltal grants unapplied reserve, Where it has
been applied, it is posted to the capital adjustment account. Amounts In the capital grants unapplied reserve are
transferred to the capltal adjustment account once they have been applied to fund capltal expenditure.

Inventories

The Authority values stock and stores at the lower of actual costs and net realisable value, after allowing for obsolescent
items. Operational facllities counit their shop and café stocks then value them at historic cost price,

Investment propertles

Under the Code, an investment property Is defined as a property which is held exclusively for reverue generation or for the
capital gains that the asset Is expected to generate. In this respect, the asset is not used directly to deliver the Authority’s
services.

Investment properties are Initlally measured at cost and thereafter at falr value.

Properties are not depreciated but are re-valued annually according to market conditions at the year end. Galns and losses
on revaluation are posted to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the comprehensive income and
expenditure statement, The same treatment s applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to Investment properties are credited to the financing and investment income line and result in
a gain for the general fund balance. However, revaluation and disposal galns and losses are not permitted by statutory
arrangements to have an impact on the general fund balance. The galns and losses are therefore reversed out of the
general fund balance in the movement in reserves statement and posted to the capital adjustment account and {for any
sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the capital receipts reserve.

Leases

Leases can be classified as elther finance or operating leases. If a lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incldental to ownership It will be classified as a finance lease regardless of Its legal form.

For assets leased under a finance lease, a debtor or creditor should be recognised at the lower of fair value of the asset and
present value of the minimum lease payments as appropriate and the annual payments consist of an amount of interest
plus an amount to clear the relevant debtor or creditor.

Leases that do not meet the definition of finance leases are accounted for as operating leases and the income or
expendlture Is efther credited, or charged to, service revenue accounts on a stralght-line basis over the term of the lease,

Under the Code, the land and buildings elements of 3 lease of fand and bulldings require separate Identification for both
lease classification and subsequent valuation. in most cases, the land element of a lease will be an operating lease.

a. The Authority as Lessee
Finance Lease
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases Is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the commencement of
the lease at Its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if
lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liabllity for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initlal direct costs of the

Authority are added to the carrylng amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry Into a lease are applled to writing
down the [ease llability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses In the perlods in which they are incurred,
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Lease payments are apportioned between:

s a charge for the acquisition of the Interest In the property, plant or equipment = applied to write down the lease
liabllity, and

e a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line In the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policles applled generally to
such assets, subject to depreclation being charged over the lease term If this Is shorter than the asset’s estimated
useful life {where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the authority at the end of the lease period).

The Authority is not required to ralse the levy to caver depreciation or revaluation and Impairment losses arlsing on
leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed caplital
Investment. Depreclation and revaluation and Impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in
the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in
Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an
expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a
straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (eg If there is a rent-
free period at the commencement of the lease).

b. The Authority as Lessor
Finance Leases

Where the Authorlty grants a finance lease over a property or an ltem of plant or equipment, the relevant asset is
written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, the carrylng amount of the asset In
the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) Is written off to the Other
Operating Expenditure lne In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the galn or loss on
disposal. A gain, representing the Authority’s net Investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (ie netted off agalnst the
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease {long-term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

» acharge for the acquisition of the interest in the property - applied to write down the lease debtor (together with
any premiums recelved), and

e finance Income [credited to the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement).

The galn credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expendlture Statement on disposal Is not permitted by statute to
Increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capltal receipt. Where a premlum has been
recelved, this Is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Capltal Recelpts Reserve in the Movement In Reserves
Statement. Where the amount due in relatlon to the lease asset Is to be settled by the payment of rentals In future
financial years, this Is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capltal Recelpts Reserve in the
Movement In Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are recelved, the element for the capital recelpt for the
disposal of the asset Is used to write down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital recelpts are transferred
to the Capital Recelpts Reserve. The written-off value of disposals Is not a charge against the levy, as the cost of non-
current assets Is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore
approprlated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund In the Balance in the Movement In Reserves
Statement.

Operating Leases

Where the Authorlty grants an operating lease over a property or an tem of plant or equipment, the asset Is retained
In the Balance Sheet. Rental income Is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basls over the life of the lease, even If this does not



match the pattern of payments (eg there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrylng amourtt of the relevant asset and charged as
an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental Income.

Non-current assets held for sale
The following criteria have to be met before an asset can be classified as held for sale under this section of the code:

¢ The asset (or disposal group) must be available for immediate sale In its present conditlon subject to terms that are
usuial and customary for sales of such assets (or disposal groups).

® The sale must be highly probable; the appropriate level of management must be committed to a plan to sell the
asset {or disposal group) and an active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been
initiated.

® The asset (or disposal group) must be actively marketed for a sale at a price that Is reasonable in relation to Its
current fair value.

® The sale should be expected to gualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year of the date of
classification and action required to complete the plan should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to
the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn,

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through Its continuing use, It Is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is re-valued Immediately before
reclassification and then carrled at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent
decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. Galns in falr vaiue are recognised only up to the amount of any previously losses
recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation Is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassifled as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property,
Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line In the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from dlsposals (if any) are credited to
the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (ie
netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in
the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account, Amounts received for a disposal In excess of
£10,000 are categorised as capltal recelpts. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to
others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financlal year are classifled as
Property, Plant and Equipment, The Authorlty generally applies a de-minlmus level of £20,000 for the purposes of capital
expenditure. In the case where the individual value of an item, e.g. computer Is below the de-minlmus leve! , but the
aggregate value of similar items purchased in the year exceed the de-minimus level the expenditure may be treated as
capital expenditure.

All expendlture on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) Is capitallsed on the
accruals basls in the accounts, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated
with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Non-current assets are valued on
the basis recommended by CIPFA and in accordance with the Statement of Asset Valuation Principles and Guidance Notes
issued by the RICS.

The capital value of any work the Authority undertakes on towpaths Is Included in the balance sheet as an asset, even
though the Authority does not usually own them. Agreements are In place with British Waterways, which allow public
access to the towpaths and continuing use of the related facilities.
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Surpluses arising on the initial valuation of non-current assets are credited to the revaluatlon reserve. PPE are re-valued
every five years, but adJustments to the valuations are made in the interim to take account of significant changes as they
occur. This year a partlal revaluation has been commissioned and is reflected In these statements.

Capital expenditure that does not result In the acquisition of an asset [s classified as "revenue expenditure funded from
capital under statute {formally deferred charges), and Is written out to revenue in the year in which it Is Incurred.

The Authority accounts for Its income from the disposal of PPE on an accruals basls. It Is held in a usable capital receipts
reserve that can be used to finance new capital expenditure.

Measurement
Assets are Initlally measured at cost, comprising:

the purchase price
any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for It to be capable of operating
in the manner Intended by management

s the Inltlal estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which It Is located.

The Authority capltalises borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction. The cost of assets acquired other
than by purchase Is deemed to be its falr value, unless the acquisition does not have commerclal substance (le It will not
lead to a varlation In the cashfiows of the Autharity). In the latter case, where an asset Is acquired via an exchange, the cost
of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Authority.

Donated assets are measured Initially at falr value, The difference between falr value and any consideration pald is credited
to the Taxatlon and Non-specific Grant Income line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the
donatlon has been made conditionally. Untll condltions are satisfled, the gain Is held In the Donated Assets Account.

Where galns are credited to the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement, they 3 re-reversed out of the General
Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account In the Movement in Reserves Statement..

Assets are then carrled in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

s [nfrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreclated historical cost
e all other assets — falr value, determined as the amount that would be pald for the asset in its exIsting use

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the speciallst nature of an asset, depreciated
replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value. The Authority has assets that are identlified as speclalised. These
include:

Rye House Gatehouse - a |isted ancient monument, constructed in 1443, which the Authorlty uses as a museum.
Lee Valley Velodrome - the London 2012 Olymplc Velodrome

Lee Valley White Water Centre - the London 2012 Olympic White Water Centre

Lee Valley Athletics Centre - the pre-Olympic elite athletes indoor/outdoor tralning centre.

Where non-property assets that have short useful llves or low values {or both), depreclated historical cost basls Is used as a
proxy for falr value.

Assets Included In the Balance Sheet at fair value are re-valued sufficlently regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is
not materially different from their falr value at the year-end, but as a minimum every flve years. Increases In valuations are
matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains.

Where decreases In value are Identified, they are accounted for by:

s where there Is a balance of revaluation galns for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the
asset Is written down agalnst that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains)

s where there is no balance In the Revaluation Reserve or an Insufficlent balance, the carrying amount of the asset Is
written down agalnst the relevant service line(s) In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.



The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation galins recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal
Implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolldated Into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impalrment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there Is any indication that an asset may be Impaired. Where Indications
exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and,
where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an Impairment loss Is recognised for the shortfail.

Where impairment losses are Identified, they are accounted for by:

¢ where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset In the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the
asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains)

s where there is no balance In the Revaluation Reserve or an Insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset Is
written down against the relevant service lines In the Comprehensive Income and Expendlture Statement.

Where an Impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal Is credited to the relevant service |lnes in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that
would have been charged If the loss had not been recognised.

Component accounting

Where components of an asset are significant In value in refation to the total value of the asset as whole, and they have
substantially different economic lives, they should be recognised separately. For example, certaln assets such as the White
Water Centre are made up of separate elements that have different useful lives.

There has been no requirement to apply these changes retrospectively and instead components are recognised separately
as and when they are replaced.

Depreciation and useful economic [He

Depreciatlon is provided for on the ‘building’ element of ail non-current assets with a finite useful life, except Investment
and communlty assets, We calculate it using the reducing balance method.

Non-current assets are not depreciated in the year of acquisition.
PPE have a useful economic life, which is determined by the class of asset. Depreciation Is calculated on this life except In

the case of investment properties that are not depreciated. Assets lives will generally fall between the ranges stated,
although there may be specific assets where the anticipated useful life will fall outside these ranges.

Asset class Useful economic Iife
Land and buildings 5 - 60 years
Vehicles, plant and machinery 5 -15 years
Infrastructure assets 10 - 40 years
Communlty assets nfa

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation charged
on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historlcal cost being transferred each year
from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding fixed
assets during the year:

» depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

® revaluation and Impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated gains in the
Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off.
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The Authority Is not required to raise [ts levy to fund depreciation, revaluation and impalrment losses or amortisations.
However, It Is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction In its overall borrowing
requirement (equal to elther an amount calculated on a prudent basls determined by the Authority in accordance with
statutory guidance {England and Wales)).

Depreciation, revaluation and Impalrment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by the contribution In the
General Fund Balance {Minlmum Revenue Provision or loans fund principal}, by way of an adjusting transactlon within the
Capltal Adjustment Account and In the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

Expenditure Incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not result In the creation
of Property, Plant and Equipment has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the comprehensive Income
and expendliture statement in the year. It is the Authority’s policy to write off the value of revenue expenditure funded from
capital under statute to services and reflect them In the comprehensive income and expenditure statement In the year they
arise. The movement In reserves statement will then reflect a transfer from the general fund balance to the capital
adjustment account so that there is no Impact on the levy.

Provisions

Provislons are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or constructive obligation that probably
requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and 2 rellable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement In the year that the authority becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the
balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking Into account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carrled In the Balance Sheet, Estimated settlements
are reviewed at the end of each financial year — where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits
will now be required {or a lower settlement than anticipated Is made), the provision Is reversed and credited back to the
relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another party (eg. from
an insurance claim), this Is only recognised as Incame for the relevant service If It Is virtually certaln that reimbursement will
be recelved If the authorlity settles the obligation,

The current system of local authority capltal accounting requires three capltal reserve accounts to be set up In the balance
sheet:

¢ The revaluation reserve records the accumulated gains on the non-current assets held by the authority arising from
Increases in value as a result of inflation or other factors.

e Capital adjustment account shows amounts set aside from revenue resources or capital recelpts to finance
expenditure on PPE or the repayment of external loans and certaln other capital financing transactlons.

o The usable capital recelpts reserve, which contains the unused proceeds arising from disposing of assets that can
be used to finance future capital expenditure.

Reserves include earmarked reserves set aside for specific policy purposes and balances which represent resources set
aside for purposes such as general contingencles and cash flow management, as well as other unusable reserves such as
employee benefits, that are kept to manage the accounting processes.

Earmarked revenue reserves

The Authority malntains renewal and repairs funds to replace equlpment and for angolng repalrs to buildings or structures
that we cannot fund in one year from service revenue budgets.



The Authorlty also has a capital fund, financed from contributions from the general fund, which can be used to finance
future capital expenditure.

An insurance fund Is maintained to self-insure certain risks. An example is storm damage to trees. The fund Is also typically
used to pay insurance policy excesses for claims against us by third parties. The services are charged with the any excess or
claim and we adjust the fund balance by a transfer to or from the general fund.

When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, It Is charged to the appropriate service revenue account In that
year to be reflected In the Surplus or Deficlt on the Provision of Services In the comprehensive Income and expenditure
statement. The reserve (s then transferred back Into the General Fund balance so that there Is no net charge to taxpayers.

Value added tax
The figures in the statements are net of VAT.
Provislon for bad & doubtful debts

All amounts outstanding on the sales ledger are reviewed to establish the likelihcod of their recovery. Where debt is
proving to be difficult to recover we create a provision for it. If that debt is then paid the provision Is reversed, should the
debt ultimately prove irrecoverable it will be written off against the provision.

Biologlcal Assets

Under IAS41 Agriculture, living animals or plants are classifled as blological assets, and agricultural produce is the harvested
product of the entity’s biological asset. A blological asset, or an item of agricultural produce, is classified as an asset when it
is both controlled by, and future economic benefit will flow to, an entity, and that its fair value can be measured reliably,

The Authorlty operates a working dairy farm, with its dairy cattle classified as biologlcal assets, and the millk produced as
agricultural produce.

The Authority uses an independent speclalist agricultural stock valuer to establish the values its biological assets at the
balance sheet date using the fair value method as an active market exists and a value can be reliably measured. Changes in
the fair value are credited to the financing and investment income line and result in a gain for the general fund balance.
However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the
general fund balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the general fund balance in the movement in
reserves statement and posted to the capital adjustment account.

Group Accounts
The Statement of Recommended Practice requires local authoritles to consider all their Interests in subsidiarles, associated
companles and Joint ventures and to prepare a full set of group financlal statements where they have material Interests,

thereby providing a complete picture of the Authority's control over other entities.

The Authorlty has determined that It has no interests In subslidlarles, associates or Jolnt ventures of a material nature, and is
not required to prepare group accounts.
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NOTE 02
EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING STATEMENT

Adjustmants from General Fund to arrive at the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statemant amounts

Adjustments of Net Change for the Other Tigtal
Capital Purpases  Penalons Adjustment Differences Adjustments
E0E 4 ED{i L1004 900 000
Chief Exacutive 1] 5
Corporate Services 190 13 175
Financlal Services 47 8
Parklands & Open Spaces 540 10 431
Leisure Venues Managemaent 2,684 283 o 2,967
Net Cost of Services 3,461 22 35 3,519
Other Income and Expenditura 0
Surplus or Deflcit 1,584 4 36 1,624
Adjustments of Nat Change for the Oiher Tatal
RESTATED Capltal Purposss  Penalons Adjustment Differencas AdJustments
2022/23 £00xn £ £000s E000s
Chief Executive 1] 92 5 a7
Corporata Sarvices m 147 2 920
Firancial Services 59 76 10 145
Paridands & Opan Spaces 505 590 1,089
Lelsure Venues Managemant 2,746 1,022 5,623
Net Cost of Services 4,081 1,926 5874
Other income and Expenditure 875 -]
Surplus or Deficlt z8m 1,166

ADJUSTMENTS FOR CAPITAL PURPOSES
Adjustments for capltal purposes - this column adds in depredation and impalrment and revaluation gains and losses In the setvices line, and for:

Financing and Invastment income and axpenditura — the statutory chargas for capltal financing le Minlmum Revenue Provision and other revanue contributions are
daducted from ether Incoma and expenditure as these ars not chargeable under generally acceptad accounting practicas.

Texation and non-specific grant Income and expenditure — Tha Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure [ing s credited with capital grants
recelvable In the year without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year.

NET CHANGE FOR THE PENSIONS ADJUSTMENTS
Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of 1AS 18 Employes Benefits pansion related expanditure and Income:

For services this reprasents the removal of the amployar pension contributions made by tha authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current
service costs and past setvice costs.

For Financing and investmant Income and expenditure — the net Interest on the defined benefit liabllity Is charged ta the CIES.

QTHER DIFFERENCES
Other differences betwsen amounts debitad/cradited to the Comprehansive Income and Expanditura Statement and amounts payable/recelvable to be racognised
under statuta:

For services this represents the removaf of compensated absences accrual for hollday pay



NOTE 03
HERITAGE ASSETS

The 2011/12 CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Autharity Accounting Introducad & requirement to disclosa Haritage Assets separately. Herltage assets are
assats that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to knowledga and culture and are Intendad to ba presarved In trust for future
ganeraticns because of thelr cultural, environmantal or historical assoclations. Provided thet they meet this definition, heritage sasets can Include
historic bulldings, ¢lvic regalla, musaum callactions and works of art.

There is no carrying amount of assets on tha Balance Sheet that Is classified as heritage assets. The Authority has n number of assets that were
conslderad ta fall under the definition of heritage assets that following review will continue to be classified as detalled below:

Rye Housa Gatehouse, (Operational Asset)
Monastic walls at Abbey gardens (Community Assat)
The Old M at Braxbourne Meadows (Community Asset)



NOTEO4
ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

Iizafna

Adjustmants Involving the Capltal adjustment account

Reversal of items debited or creditad to the Comprahensive incomas and expenditurs statamant;

Charges for depreciation and Impalrment of non currant assets
Revaluatlon galns of property, plant and equipment
Revaluation lossas of property, plant and equipment
Movements in the falr value of Investment properties
Movements In the fair value of biologlcal assets

Capltal grants and contributions recognised

Insertion of ltems not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and expenditure statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of eapltal investment
Capltal expenditure charged agalnst the General fund/Earmarked Reserves

General
Fund

646

Capital
Recalpts
£000s

Adjustmant Involving capltal receipts raserva

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to
Capltal Recelpts Reserve

Capltal expenditure financed from Usable Capital Recelpts

6,788

Capital @rants

Unapplied
£0002

Total Usable
Reserves

799

430

6,788

Adjustmants Involving tha Panslons reserva:

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits dabited or credited to the
Comprehenslve income and expenditure statement

Employer's pensions contributlons and direct payments to pensloners

payable in the year

738

739

Adjustment Immolving defarred capltal racelpts

Principal recelved in respect of long term debtors (finance leases)

Adjustment involving the Short-term compensatad absances account

Amount by which officer remunaration charged to the Comprehensive
Ineame and expendlture statement on an ateruals basks [s different
fram remuneration chargeable In the year in accordance with

statutory requirements

6,581

4,956
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NOTE 04
ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FLINDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

i bl

Adjustmants involving the Capital adjustment account

RESTATED
Genaral
Fund
£000s

Reversal of ltams deblted or creditad 10 tha Comprehansive Incoma and expenditure statemant:

Charges for depredation and impalrment of non current assets
Revaluation gains of proparty, plant and aguipment
Revaluation losses of property, plant and equipment
Movements In the falr value of investment properties
Movemeants in the falr valua of blological assets

Caphial grants and contributions recognised

626

{nsartion of ltems not debited or creditad to the Comprehensive Income and expenditurs statemant:

Statutary provision for the financing of capltal frvastment
Capltal expenditure charged against the Genaeral fund/Enrmarked Reservas

g &

Capital Capital Grants
Unnpplied

i

Total Usable
Resarves
£000s

Adjustment involving capital recalpts reserva

Tranafer of non-current asset sale proceads from revenue t©
Caphtal Recalpts Reserve

Capital axpanditura financad from Usable Capital Recalpts

4,931

2616 -

2,616

Adjustmants involving tha Pansions raserve:

Reversal of ltems relating to retirement benefits deblted or credited to the

Comprahaensive Income and expenditure statemant

Employer’s pansions contributions and direct payments to pensioners
pavable In the year

Adjustment involving deferrad capital racaipts
Principal recelved (n respact of long term debtors {finance leasas)

Adjustmant invalving the Short-term compansated sbsances account

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive
Income and expenditure statemant on an accruals basts Is different
from remuneration chargeable In the year In accordancs with
statutory requirements

134
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OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE
0284 2022/23
toote 000 onh
Jfloss on dispasal of non-current assst
Jloss on disposal of blologkal assets ]
Penslon administration expenses » 19 19
Totsl other oparating sxpenditura
NOTE 07
FINANCING AND INVESTMENT
2023/24 2022723
Thooe E000s £000s
Interast payable and similar charges n 1,023 6
Net Interast on the net defined pension banefit llability/{ssset) » 856
Interest recelvable on finance lanses (lessar) »
Invastment Interest 1
Changes In the falr valug of investment properties ? o 28
Changes In the falr value of blological assets [} 40
Rental recelved on Investment properties wm
Total Financing and investmant
NOTE 08
NON SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME
2023/24 2022/23
Kate £0008 ED00s
Laviet on local suthorities ]
Revenus grants and cantributions n
Capttal grants and contributions un
Capltal grants and contributions unapplied s [}

Total Non Spreific @rant Incoma
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NOTEO08

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
2023/24 202223
(i ] (£ 03]
Balance at 1 Apsil
Dairy Cattle 326 258
Additions 7
Disposals 0
Movement [n falr value B8
Balance at 31 March 149 326

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2023, the Authority had ane major capltal commitment outstanding for the redevelpment of the Lee Valley Ica
Centre. The total construction contract valua was £25.5m, with an overall budget Included Project Managerment, manitering and

contingency of £30m. At year end, total project spend was £27.7m

NOTE1O
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The following Items of Income and expense have been accounted for In the Financing and Investment Income and Expendlture
line In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Rental income and expenses for investment properties

2028124 2px3in
£000s L0004

Rental income from Investment property
Direct operating expenses arising from investment property 0 4]

Nat galn

41



NOTE 11
FAINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of Financlal instrumants

The following categories of financial instrument are carried In the Balance Sheet.

Financlal Asssts
Investments Debtors
1023/24 2022/23 2023/24 Waafay
£000s £000s £000s £D00s
Current Assats
Amortised Cost 15,210 10,635 3,060 4,170
Total Financiy] Assets 15,210 10,835 3,089 4,170
Financlal LiabHHiss
Borrawing Craditors
024/24 2022/23 2023/24 2022/23
£000s £000s £D00s £000s
Current Liabliides
Amortised Cost

Total Financial Liabiiities

Gains wnd Losses in Relation to Financial Instrumaents

The galns and losses recagnised In the Income end Expenditure Account and Statement of Total Recognised Galns and Losses In relation to financlat

instruments sre made up as follows.

Surplus / deficit an the provision of
sarvices
2023/24 2022723
£000s £000s
Interast Ravenue
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest Expansa 1,023 [




NOTE 12

INVENTORIES
2023124 2n22/22
€000 Entss
Agriculture produce
QOpening balance 148 123
Net movement 24
Closing balance 119 147
QOthar stock
Cpening balance 161 145
Nat movement 9 15
Closing balance 170 180
Total
Opening balanca ane 168
Net movemant 9
Closing balance 289 37




DEBTORS
2023724 2022123
L0 MKy
Cantral governmant bodles 462 1821
Othar local authortties o 200
Al other bodles 1,735 1,275
Total debtors 2,197 3,266
NOTE 14
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2023/24 2022/23
£000s £000s
Cash held by Authority 4 [
Bank current actounts a5 55
Short-tarm daposits with banks 4 3,757
Tetsd cash and cash squivalents 4,880 2,816
2023/24 2022123
BANK OVERDRAFTS
Bank current accounts overdrafts ) 0
NOTE 15
CREDITORS
2023724 w2/n
£000s £000s
Central government kodles 141

Other local authorities
Al ather bodles
Tutal craditors

NOTE 16
PROVISIONS

There are no provisions recognised in the accounts




NOTE 17

UNUSABLE RESERVES
202324 2p22/23
£0003 401
Unusabie Resarves
Revaluation Reserve
Capltal adjustment account
Penslons raserve
Short-tarm compensatad absences accaunt 484 447

Deferred capltal recelpts

Total unusable reserves

Revaluation Reserve

‘The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arlsing from Increases In the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment. The halance
Is reduced when assets with accumulated galns are:

» revalued downwards or Impalred and the gains are lost
« used In the provision of services and the gains are consumed thraugh depreciation, or
» disposed of and the gains are reallsed.

The Resarve contains only ravaluation gains accumulated sines 1 April 2007, tha date that the Reserve was created, Accurmulated gaing arlsing before
that date are consolldated fnto the balance on tha Capital Adjustment Account,

202324 2022/23
£000s £000s

Balance at 1 April
Upward revaluation of assets 1]
Dawnwards revaluation of assets 4] 2,005
Surplus or deficit on revaluaticn of non-current assats not
posted to the (surplus) or deficlt on the provision of sarvices
Differenca batwesn falr value depreciation and historlc cost depreciation 588 651
Amount written off to the capital adjustment account 588 3,276

Balance at 31 March

Other amounts written off the the capital adjustment account
This represents the cumulative correction of the difference between fair value and historic cost depreclation previously not transferred to the capital
adjustment account




NOTE 17
UNUSABLE RESERVES

Capital Adjustmant Account

The Capltal Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arlsing from the different arrangaments for accounting for the consumption of non-
current assets and for financing the acqulsition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account Is debited with
the cost of acquistiion, congtructian or enhancemant as depreciation, impairment |osses and amertisations are charged to the Comprefrensive Income
and Expanditura Statament (with recanclling postings from the Ravaluation Reserve to convert falr value flgures to a historical cost basis). The Account
Is cradited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and snhancemant.

The Account contalns sccumulatad gains and lasses on Investment Proparties and gains recognised on danated assets that have yet to be consumed by
the Autherity

The Account alsoc contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment bafora 1 April 2007, tha date that the Revaluation Resarve
was created to hokd such gains.

Nota 4 provides details of the source of ll thw transactions pasted to the Accaunt, apart from thase Invelving the Revaluation Reserve,

RESTATED
023/24 2022/29
£000s £000s
Balsnce at 1 April
Reversal of ltams relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to
the Comprehensive incoma and expenditure statement:
- Charges for depreciation and impalrment of non current assets 3,460 3,508
- Revaluation gaing/izsses on Proparty, plant and aguipmant 4] 571
- Amounts of non current assats written off on disposal or sale as part of
the gain on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and expenditure
statement 164 1,625
8,824 6,704
Ad]usting amounts written out of the revaluation reserve
Net written out smaunt of the cost of non currant assets consumed in year 3,036 8120
Capital financing applied in the year:
- Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprahensiva income
and expenditure statement that have been appliad to capital finandng
= Application of grants from Caplital Recaipts Unapplied Account 0 1]
= Use of capital recelpts to finance new capital axpenditure
- Use of capital fund to finance new caplnl expenditure 0
- Statutory provision for the financing of capital Investment charged
against the Genaral fund
- Capltal expanditura charged against the General fund [+]
Movamants In the fair value of Investmant proparties debited or
credited to the Comprehanslve incoma and expenditure statement 0 28

Movements In the falr value of Blological Assets deblted or
cradited to the Comprehensiva Income and expenditure statement 40

Balance at 51 March

46



NOTE 17
UNUSABLE RESERVES

Panslons Ressrve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differances arising from the different arrangemants for accounting for post employment benefits and for
funding beneflts In accordance with statutery provisions. The Authority accounts for past employiment benefits |n the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employess accruing years of service, updating the llabliities recognised to reflect inflation,
changing assumptions and Investmant returns on any resgurces set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benafits eamed
to be financed as the Authaority makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any penslons for which it is directly responsible,
The debit balance on the Penslons Reserve therefore shows a substantlal shortfall In the benefits earned by past and current emplovees and the
resources the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the
benafits coms to be pald.

2023/24 2022423
£000s £000a
Balance at 1 April 23,571
Actuarial {gains) or lasses on penslons assats and |lablitles
Reversal of ttems relating to retirernent benafits debited or credited to the
{Surplus) ar deficlt on the provision of services In the Comprehensive
Income and expenditure statement 742 3,582

Employars pensions contributions and diract payments to pensioners
payable In the year

Balance at 31 March

Short-term compensated sbsances sccount

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance from aceruing for compensated
absences garmned but not taken in the year e.g, annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact
on the General Fund Balance Is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account,

2023/24 2022728

£000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 447 581
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the and of the preceding year

Amounts acarued at the end of the current year 484 447

Balance at 31 March 483 a7z
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NOTE1?
UNUSABLE RESERVES

Deferred Capital Raceipts

Tha Daferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recagnised on the dispasal af non-current assets but for which cash settiament has yet to take
place. Under statutory arrangements, the Authority doss not treat these galns as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they ara backed by
cash recalpts,

2023/24 Wi
£000s £000s
Balance ut 1 April
Tranafer of deferred sale proceads credited as part of the gain/less on disposal on
the Comprehensive Incoma and Expenditure Statement 2 2

Balance at 31 March




NOTE 18
CASHALOW OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The cash flows from operating activities [ncludes the following items

Intarest pald
Interest received

49



NOTE 18
EXPENDITURE AND INCOME ANALYSED BY NATURE

The authority's sxpanditurs and Incoma Is analysed as follows

2023724 202213
£000x E000s
Expenditure
Employee expansas 6,966 8,078
Other servicas expsnses 11,200 12,538
Support service recharges 0 ]
Depreclation 3,460 3,508
Revalustion and Impairment [+} 571
Interest payments B12 [
Penslon Intarest and administration costs 8,050 2,534
Change In falr valua of investment properties 4] a
Change In falr valua of biological assets 40
Galn or loss on non-current assets [} [+]
Contribution to Capltal [ /]
Total axpenditure 25,528 FiAl
Income
Fees, charges and other Incoma
Imterest & imvestrment ncome
Return on Penslon Assats
Levies on local authorities
Change In falr valug of investment properties 0 28
Change in fair value of biologlcal assets 0 0
Galn or loxs on nor-currant assets
Caplital grants and contributions 53
Totsl incoma
{Surplus) / daficit on provision of sarvices 1822




NOTE 20

STAFF REMUNERATION
Expenses, fees Panslon
Salary und allowancas contribution Totul
Voar £000s D00 £000s 000
Senior Officers recalving over £150,000
Chief Executive Officer {CEQ) - 5 Dawsan 2023/24 170 1 ) 171
2022423 164 1 ¢ 185
Senior Officars recelving batwean £50,000 and £150,000
Deputy Chief Executhra 2023/24 146 1 0 157
2022/23 140 1 22 153
Corporate Directar 2023/24 114 0 15 129
2022/23 104 1 16 1
Corporate Director 2023724 106 1 15 122
022423 a5 1 15 115

Post titles are as at 31 March, cor at date the employee left the Authority.
Expanse allowances typlcally Include a car allowance,
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NOTE 20
STAFF REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION BANDING

The Authorlty's employees recelving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year, exduding emplayer's pension contributions and severance payments, were
pald the fallowing amounts.

2023/24 W22/
Remunsration Bands * No. of Staf¥ No. of Staft

£50,000 - 54,999
£55,000 - 58,999
£65,000 - 69,999
£70,000 - 74,899
£75,000 - 79,599
£80,000 - 84,999
£85,000 - 89,999
£100,000 - 104,999
£105,000- 109,999
£110,000- 114,999
£1440,000 - 144,909
£145,000 - 145,999
£165,000 - 166,993
£175,000 - 179,999

O RO R RO MO WO DWW
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* Remunaeration Bards with no staff In have bean axcludad.

NOTE21
MEMBERS ALLOWANCES

The Authority pald the following amounts to members of the Authority during the yaar.

2028/24 2022/23
£000s £000s
Allowances i [}
NOTE 22
TERMINATION BENEFITS

There were no contracts terminated but the Authority during 2023724, In the previous year thers wers also none.
o




The Authorlty credited tha following grants, contributions and donatlons to the Comprehensive Income and Expendlture
Statement in 2023/24

2023/24 2022123,
£000s £000s
Craditad to Ssrvices
Improvement of open areas of the Authority 120 12
Capital Grants Recelved
2023/24 2022128
£000s £000s
Grants Recalpts in Advance (Capltal Grants)
Improvement of open areas of the Authority 0 0
Gther grants 799 25
79% 25
REVENUE GRANTS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE
2023/24 2022/23.
£0004
Balance at 1 April 1]
Revenue Grants recelved In year
Grants credited to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account
that have baan usad to fund revanue expenditure 120 13
Balance at 31 March
CAPITAL GRANTS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE
2023/24 1032123
£00Ds 3R
Balance at 1 April
Capltal Grants receivad In year
Grants credited to Comprehensive Incoma and Expanditura Account
that have been used to fund capltal expenditure 798 25
Transfar to Capital Grants Unapplied 1 +]
Balarce at 31 March 0 {400}
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NOTE 24
RELATED PARTIES

Related parties are erganisations ar Individuals that, as a result of their relationship with us, may exert, or be sean as exerting,
Influsnce over our business. Significant transactions in 2023/24 were as follows:

2023/24 222/
£000s £000s
Incoms
Leviss recalvabla
As par note 32 for analysis levy
Payments
Expendhture inciucied in Comprahensive incoms and Expanditurs Statemant
Grenwich Lalsure Limited 2,353 3,243

Greenwich Laisure Limited (GLL) are & related party for 2023/24, as operators of our five major venues via the Lelsura Services
Contract (LSC), Thara Is a contract management fes payable batween the two parties,

In addition, for the first twa years of the LSC, a utliities risk share agraement is In place wheraby the consumption risk shts with GLL
and the price risk with the Authority.

The tatal amaunt pald, or accrued, within the 2023/24 sccounts for these payments Is £2.252m
Members and senlor officars are required ta complete a decisration of related party transactions datailing any relationship that
thay may have.

Where there are transactions with borough and county councils (for axample road sweeping and planning applications) thess are
conducted st arms length.

The penslon schame administered by the London Panslons Fund Authority (LPFA) Is also a relatad party as it affacts the authority
and Its officers directly. Disclosures about the pansion fund are made in Note 29,

This disclosure note has been praparad on the basls of specific declarations obtained In March 2024 In respact of related party
transsctions. The Authorlty has prepared this disclosure In accordance with IAS 24 and how It applles to the publk sector.




NOTE 25
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING

003/ 2003733
000 (Frai]

Opaning capltal financing raquirement 87,887 23,845
Caphtal ivestment
Property, plant and equipment 3,246 17,122
Investment propertles /] 1]
Blological Assets 27 [+]
Sources of finance
LCapital recaipts
Capital Fund (]
Govermnmant grants and athar contrlbutions
Grants Unappliad ] 1]
Flnance Leases
Direct revenue contributions 0
Minimum revenue provision
Closing capital financing raguirement 32,046 27,887
Explanation of movemants in year
Incraase/ In underlylng need to borrowing
unsupported by governmant financial assistanca, 13,801

Changa In capltal financing requirament 13,691




AUTHORITY AS A LESSEE
Operating leases

Tha Authority has one significant operating leasa ralating to the land for the King Gaorga Reservoir.
The future minimum lease paymants due under non-cancellable leasas In future years are:

W 24 2022/23
£000s £000s
Not later than 1 year 14 14
Later than ona year and not later than five years 54 54
Later than five ysars 24 a7
n” ws
This land scquired under the operating leass Is sub-lat, and the future minimum sub lsasa payments
axpacted to be recelved by the Authority In future years are:
202824 2022/23
£00Ds £000s
Not later than 1 year 11 11
Later than one year and not later than five years 42
Later than fiva yaars 2L 2
74
The expanditure charged to the Parklands and Open Spaces Services line In the Comprahansive
Income and Expenditure Statemant during tha year In reletion ta this lease was
202324 2022728
£000s £000s
Minimum lease paymants 14 14
Sub leasa paymants racaivable
3 i




NOTE 26
LEASES

AUTHORITY AS A LESSOR
Operating leases

The Authority hes a number of propertles that have tenants who pay commercial rent, Thase are

treated as operating leases, based on an assessment agalnst the Code.

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable |eases in future years are

0324 2022/28

£000s £000s

Not later than one year 291 291
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,166 1,166
Later than 5 years 19,596 19,887
21,053 28,279

The minlmum lease payments recelvable do not include rents that are contingent on events taking place after the lesse was
entered inta, such as adjustments following rent reviews. In 2023/24 £481k contingent rents were raceivable by the Authority

(2022/23: £465Kk).

The Authorfty has a gross Investment [n the leases, made up of the minimum lease payments expected ta be received over the
remaining term. The minimum lease payments comprise setement of the long-term debtor for the Interest in the property
acquired by the lessee and finance income that will be eamed by the Authority In future years whilst the debtor remains

outstanding. The gross [nvestment fs made up of the following amounts:

W23/24 2022/23
£000s £0003
Finance lease debtor as at 31 March 872 874
Uneamed finance Income 8,781 8,898
Gross [nvestment In lease as at 31 March 9,853 9,770
Gross investment In lease
The gross Investment In the lease and the minimum |ease payments wiil be racelved over the following periods:
2023/24 2022128
£000s £000s -
Not later than one year 117 117
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 470 470
Later than 5 y=ars 9,066 9,183
9,653 8,770
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NOYE 27
IMPAIRMENT OF NON CURRENT ASSETS

2023/24 2022/28
000 00
Impairment as a result of movement In Market Valua, charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expendliture Statement
Plcketts Lock Galf Course 255
Lee Valley White Water Centre B&5S
NOTE 28
EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS
2023/24 2022/28
£000s
Scale feus payable to the Emst and Young for axternal
audit services carried out by the appointed audior 66 2




NOTE29
DISCLOSURE OF NET PENSION ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Authority participates In the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by Londan Penslons Fund Authorlty. This is a funded
defined beneflt scheme, meaning that the Authority and amployees pay contributions Inte a fund which are calculated to balance the pension
flabilities with Investment assets,

As part of the terms and conditions of employmant of our offlears and other employaes, wa offer ratirament benefits. Although these benefits
wlll not actually be payable untll employees retire, we must disclose cur commitment to make the payments at the time that employees earn
thelr future entitiement.

The table below summarisas the mambership data as at 31 March 2022 for members recelving funded benefits, and as at 31 March 2022 for
any members receiving unfunded beneflts.

Salarleaf Furezage

Number  Pensions £000s Age

Actives 245 6,347 45
Deferrad pensionars 482 926 49
Pensioners 252 1,882 71
Unfunded pensloners 38 57 81

The Authority recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the net cost of services when the benefits are earned by employees, rather than
when they are eventually pald. However, the charge we are required to make against local taxpayers Is based on the cash payable In the year,
s0 the real cost of retirement benefits Is removed from the Income and expenditure statemant after net operating expenditure.

The net asset (le the amount by which the pansions llabliftfes excead its assets) of £4.1m affects the Authority's nat worth as recorded In the
balance shest. However, statutory srrangements for funding the deficit mean that the Authority’s financial position remalins healthy, The
deficlt on the penslon scheme will be made good by Increased contrbutions over the emplovees’ remalning working life, as assessed by the
scheme actuary.

Llabllities have been assessed oh an actuarial basis using the projected unlt method. This estimates pensfons that will be payable In future
years depending on assumpticns about factors such as mortality rates and salary levels, The scheme llabilitles have been assessed by Barnett
Waddingham , an Indapandant firm of actuaries, their estmates for the fund being based on the |atest full valuation of the scheme as at 31
March 2022

Demographic/Statistical assumptions

The following set of demographic assumptions have been used, and are consistent with those used for the most recent Fund valuation, which
was carrled out as at 31 March 2022, except for the CMI projection model, The post retiramant mertality tablas have bean constructed based
on Club Vi analysis. These base tables are then projected using the CMI_2022 Model, alowing for & long-term rate of Improvement of 1.25%
p.a., smoothing parameter of 7.0, an Initfal addltion parameter of 0.0% p.a. and a 2022 walghting of 25%

‘Ufa axpactancy from age 65 vears 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Retiring today Males 219 221
Females 24.2 244
Retirlng In 20 years Males 222 224
Females 254 256
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NOTE 28
DISCLOSURE OF NET PENSION ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Frnandal sxsumgtions

The financlal assumptions usad for the purposes of the LAS19 calculations are as follows:

Assumptions sz st 31March2024 31March2023 31 March 2022
% per yasr Real % 5 par year
Discount rate 4.90% 4.80% 2.600
Pension Increases {CPI) 2.90% 1.B5% 3.20%
RP Inflation 3.20% 3.20% 3,50%
Salary Increases 3.90% 3.85% 4.20%
Thase assumptions are set with refarence to markaet conditions at 31 March 2024,
Balance sheet disdlosurs as at 31 March 2024
91/02/2024 31/03/2023 31/08/2022
£000s £000s £000s
Prasant value of defined banafit obligation 64,751 63,434 96,728
Fair value of schame assats
2,877
Prasent value of unfunded abilgation 583 630 854
Unrecognised past service cost 0 0 »]
Net Enbility in Balsncs Sheat 15571

The movement In the net pensian Bablity for the year to 81 March 2024 Is as follows:

31/03/2024 31/0a/2023

£000s £0001
Surplua/ideficit) at start of year 33,571
Current service cost 760 2,707
Employer contributions {reguler)
Contributions for unfundad banefits
Past service costs 0 0
Interast cost 3,031 2515
Interest Incoma
Remeasurements
Administration expenses 19 15
Surplus/[deficit} at and of yaar




NOTE29
DISCLOSURE OF NET PENSION ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Remeasurements in Other Comprehensive Expenditura and incoma

Retum on plan assets In excess of Interest

Other acturlal gains/{losses) cnassets

Change in finandal assumptions

Changes In demographle assumptlons

Exparienca gain/{loss) on defined benefit obligation
Changes In effect of asset ceiling

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
£000s £0008°
2,900

0
S86 41,788
757 2,582
4,011 36,554

Profit & Loss Account Costs for the Year to 31 March 2024

Service cost
Net Interest on the defined llabl(ity {asset)

Administration expenses

31/03/2024 31/03/2023

Tetal

Actual return on Scheme assets

£000s £000s
760 2,707
856

19 19
742 3,582
5,968 839

Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation

a1/03f2024 a1/03/2023

ECili £0002
Opening defined benaflt obligation 64,084 87,622
Current Service Cost 760 1,707
Interest cost 3,031 2,515
¢hange in finandial assumptions
Changes In demographic assumptlons
Experlence (gain}/loss on defined benefit obligation 232 6,854
Estimated benefits pald
Past service costs 0 1]
Contributions by employees 981 950
Unfunded pension payments
Closing dafined banefit obligation 65,334 54,084
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NOTE 29
DISCLOSURE OF NET PENSION ASSETS AND LIABRLITIES

Reconcilintion of fair value of amployer assety

31/05/2024 81/0a/2023

£000s ED00s
Opaning falr valus of smployer assats 54,247 s4,081
Interest Income on assets 3,068 1,659
Return on assats, excluding Interest
Other actuarial galns/{losses) 0
Administration expensas
Contributions by amployer Including unfunded 739 782
Contributions by employees 581 950
Estimated banafits pald plus unfunded
Closing feir valus of smployer sssets 85,725 64,247
Tha estimated asset allocation as at 31 March 2024 Is as follows

31/03/2024 31/03/2023

£000= ] £000s *
Equities 42,085 60.5% 37,781 55.5%
Target Return Partfollo 11,994 17.3% 11,946 23.0%
Alternativa Assats -
Infrastructure 7587 11.5% 8,129 8.5%
Proparty 6,360 9.1% 6,309 8.8%
Cash 1,089 1.6% 82 4.2%
Total 89,525 100.0% 64,247 100.0%




NOTE 29
DISCLOSURE OF NET PENSION ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Sansitivity analysls

Ad]ustment to discount rate (incranss/decrense by 0.1%)
Present Valus of Total Obligation
Projected Service Cost

Adjustment ta long term salary Increase (increase/decrease by 0.1%)
Present Value of Total Obligation
Projected Service Cost

Adjustment to pansion Intreases and deferred revaluation (increase/decreass by 0.1%)
Prasant Value of Total Qbligation
Projected Service Cost

Adjustment to mortallty age rating assumption (Increase/decrease by 1 year)
Presant Valua of Total Obligation
Projacted Sarvice Cost

31/08/2024

65,334
711

65,334
1

65,334
711

65,334
711

Increase In
assumption
£000s

60,373
563

+H.5%
65,677
714

+0.5%
70,741
891

Incraase In
mssumption
£000s

+0.1%
64,288
679

+0.1%
65,401

+0.1%
66,359
744

+1 yanr
67,746
743

Projected pansion expeanse for the year to 31 March 2025

31/03/2025

£000s

Service cost 711
Net Intenest on the defined ITabllity/{asset)

Adminlstration expenses 21

Total 509

Emplayer contributions 665

Dacraass in
assumpHon

-0.1%
66,406
744

-0.1%
65,267
710

0.1%
64,335
679

=1 year
63,016

assumption:
£(00s

-0.5%
70,996
885

-0.5%
65,005
708

0.5%
60,580
55%




NOTE S0
NATURE AND OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risks arising from Financlal Instruments
The Authority’s activities expose It to a varlety of finandal risks:
cradit risk = the posslbllity that other partles might fall to pay amounts dus to the Authority
liquidity risk — the posslbllity that the Authority might not hava funds avallable to meet its commitments to make paymants

market rlsk — the passibllity that financlal loss might arise for the Authority as a result of changes In such measuras as Interast rates and stock markat
mavements.

Crediit Rlsk

Tha Authority carries out certaln functians for which chargas ara levied and involces have to be raisad. Facilitles should secure payment far provision of
sarvices before the date of the avent. Where ongeing agraemants ara In place payment Is collected at the beginning of the contract or by monthly
Instalments by direct deblt. As a result of this Authority has s proportionally small Accounts Receivabla Ledger for an organisation its siza. The
Authority’s policy Is to set aside a prevision for bad debts In order to minimisa the effact of default by customers and the provision made for dabts as at
31st March 2024 was £22,500.

At 31st March 2024 amounts owsd by customers stood &t £539,000, (FA53,000 31st March 2023]. In this context a custormer |8 any parsan or
organisation for whom an involcs [s raised In the Authority's maln accounts racelvable ledger, Ranging from small value Involces to Individuals to muiti
million pound involces for cantractad works. The Authority’s stendard terms are for payment within 30 days, and payment up front for hire of facliities,
The £938,000 outstanding ks analysed by age as follows.

Aged debtor profile
M23f24 2022723
E000s £000s
Lass Than 30 Days 107 0
31 to 60 Days 129 124
6110 50 Days 12 62
91+ Days 691 596
999 52

Generally no provision 's made for dabts less than 12 months old except where there are concemns abaut specific debts. Debts aver 12 months old will
usually be the subject of Iitigation or agreed payment plans and tha declslon on whether to provide for them, and for how much, will depend upon
Individual dreumstances which Incluge an assesament of currant credit status, outstanding county court judgemants and the progress of [itigation.

Additional credit risk arisas from deposits with banks and financial Institutions and the Authority’s general policy objective is to Invest Its surplus funds
prudently, The Authority’s Investment priorities are:

security of the Invested capital
Nquidity of the invested capital
an optimum yield which Is commensurata with security and liquidity

Tha Autharity sets limits on prinelpal amounts Invested and the duratian of thase Investmaents, depandant on the financial standing of institutions and
applled sector and country limits In line with their financlal strength.

The Authority's Treasury Management Policy states that daposits can be made with banks and the top 7 listed Bulkding Soclaties. Full detalls can be
found In the Authorities Treasury Managament Polley.

The aperation of soma bullding sodeties doas not require them to have s credit rating, although In every other respact tha sacurity of the soclety would
match similarly sizad socleties with ratings. The Authority uses such buflding societies that have a minimum asset size of £10,000 milllan, but restrict
thase types of Invastments.

The C16s Guldsnce on Investmants, revised during 2009/10, reltarated security and liquidity as the primary objectives of a prudent Investment palicy.
Although the Guldance becomes cperative on 1st Aprll 2010, its principal recommendations run parallel to the eredit risk management requiremaents In
the revised Traasury Management Code, In tha revised Guldance, Specifisd Investments are thoss made with a body or scheme of “high credit quality”.

Both the Guldance and the revisad Traasury Managsmant Code amphasise that counterparty cradit eriteria should not rely on credit ratings alone but
should include a wider range of indicators. The revisad Code raquires that ratings assigned by all three rating agencles = Fitch, Moody's and Standard &
Paor’s - be takan Into account and the lowest rating be used

After the partiularly torrid ecanomic recassion and a severe downturn In growth that extended Inta early 2009, thara wara some signs of 8 ‘recovery’.
In order to stimulate growth, the Bank of England maintalned the Bank Rate 2t 0.5% throughout the year and also took extrema maasures to revive the
aconomy thraugh lts Quantitathve Easing (QE) programme. The Increased supply of monay in the system due to GE did not howsver translate Into an
increass In the movement of monay in the system as banks wars, and still are, unwilling to lend.



NOTE 30
NATURE AND RISKS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Therefore during ancther year of aconomic uncertainty and the continued reluctance of ‘bank to bank’ lending, managing counterparty risk continued

to be the Autharity’s overwhelming [nvestment priority

Tha following analysis surimarises the authority’s potential maximum sxposura to credlt risk as #t 31 March 2023,

Credit rating of Institutions holding investments

FITCH rating agancy
Upper Madium Grade
Lower Medlum Grade
Highly Speculative
Not Rated

Total invested

Long Term Sum Invested Sum Invested.
Credit Rating asat 31/03/24 as at 31/03/23"
ERID 000
A 4,771 3,757
BBB+/BBE 6,196 4,019
8 0 0
4,158 3,000
15,122 10,776

The following analysis summaries the authorlty’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk based on experience of default and non-collection over the

last five financlai years.

Default rate and non coflection rate

Deposlits with banks and financial institutions at nominal value

at Nominal
Vilue
31/03/2024

15,122

Histerical
experlence
of defaults

31/03/2024
£000s

Amount

at Nominal
Valus
31/05/202%

10,776

Historical
experiance
of defaults
31/03/2023
£000s

The authorlty does not expact any losses from nan-parformance by any of Its counterparties In relation to depesits.



NOTE 30
NATURE AND RISKS OF AINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Liculdity Risk

The Authority ensuras it has adequate though not excessive cash resourcas, borrowing arrangements, overdraft and standby facllities to snable ft, at all
times, to have the level of funds avallable which are necassary for the achievement of Its business / service cbjectives.

The Authority has access to the following to assist with liquidity:

An overdraft fadlity of £50,000 overnight with our bankers — NatiWWest Bank.

A Spacial interest baaring nccount with Natwaest

A Call sccount with Santander PLC from which monias can be ‘called back'

As the Authority has access to borrowings from local authorities and the Public Works Loan Board, thara s not thought to be a significant risk that it will
be unable te raise finance to meet its commitmants under financial instruments.

202324 2022/23
£000s £000s
Less than 1 year 25,000 20,000
Between 1 and 2 years 0 5,000
Between 2 and 5 years 0 [
More than 5 yaars 0 4]
25,000 25,000

Market Risk

The Authority seeks to ensure that Its stated treasury management policles and objectives will not be compromised by adverss market fluctuations In
tha valua of the principal sums it [nwests, and will accordingly seek protaction from the effects of such fluctuations.

The Authority Is exposed to significant risk In terms of Its axposuras to Interest rate movements on Its borrowings and Investments. Movements In
Intarest rates have a complex Impact on the authority. For Instance, a rise In Interest rates would have the following effects:

Borrowings at variable rates — the Interest rate expense charge to tha income and Expenditure Aczount would rise
Borrawings st fixed rate — the fair value of the llabliities borrowings would fall

Investments st variable rate — the Intarest Incomae credited to the Income and Expendhure Account would risa
Invastments at fixed rates - the falr value of the assets would fall,

Borrowings are not carried at falr valua, so nominal gains and losses on fixad rate borrowings would not Impact on the Incoma and Expenditure or
Movemant In Resarves. However, changes In Interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Incoma
and Expenditura Account and affect the General Fund Balance pound for pound.

Price Risk

The Authority manages ks exposure to fluctuations In prices so as to minimisa any detrimental Impact on Its budged Income / expenditure levels. The
Authority does not invest In Instrumants such as equity shares as part of (ts Treasury function and thus has no expasure to less arlsing from movements
In prica.

Forelgn Exchange Risk

The Authority manages Its exposure to fluctuations In axchange rates so as to minimise any detrimantal Impact on lts budged Income / axpenditure
levels. Tha Autharity has no financlal assets or llabilities denominated In forelgn currencles and thus have no axposure to loss arising from movemants
In exchanga rates.




NOTE31
INTERNAL INSURANCE

We manage insurable risk extemally, through commereial insurance, and from our own resources, Services contribute to the Insurance fund to cover agreed
liabilitles, such as storm damage to trees, and certain uninsured losses, particularly insurance-claim excesses. The surplus or deflclt shown is the difference
between tatal contributions from servicas, and clalms made or provided for In the year, Surplusas ara normally re-invested In (and deficits made gaod fram)
the Insurance fund.
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ANALYSIS OF LEVY

2023/24 022/28

000y 000

Corparation of Landon A 20
Inner London boroughs
Camden 235 213
Greenwich 218 198
Hackney 196 175
Hammersmith and Fulham 213 195
Islington 208 150
Kensington and Chelsea 248 230
Lambath 286 263
Lawisham 126 210
Southwark 277 254
Towar Hamiets 287 256
Wandswaorth 358 3127
Westminster 345 320
Outer London boroughs
Barking and Dagenham 135 123
Barmet 389 257
Bexley 211 194
Brent 257 234
Bromiey 341 315
Croydon 349 323
Ealing 309 281
Enflald 246 228
Haringay 203 188
Harrow 226 210
Havering 229 211
Hillingdon 263 245
Hounslow 227 208
Kingston Upon Thames 164 150
Merton 157 179
Newham 118 194
Radbridge 230 115
Richmond Upon Thames 227 220
Sutten 138 174
Waltham Forest 204 186
Hertfordshire and Essex authorities
Hertfordshire 1,180 1,085
Essax 1,400 1289
Thurrock 133 122
Total lavias on local authorities 10,816 8,770




NOTES3
NON-CURRENT ASSET VALUATIONS

The Authority carries out a five year rolling programme of asset valuations that ensures all property, plant and equipment required to be measured at current value
Is revalued at least every five years. In additlon to the partlal valuations carred out =ach year, the major assets {Lee Valley Velopark, Lee Valley Hockey and Tennis
Centre, Lea Valley White Water Centre, and Lee Valley Athletics Cantre) are revalued on an snnual basls.

The Autharity undertack a full asset valuation In 2023/24, with an effective date of 31 March 2023, This exarcisa was undartaken by an external consultant, Montagu
Evans, Charterad Surveyors. Valuation were made In accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuatlon Practice and Guidance Notes of The Royal Institution of
Charterad Surveyors. As at publication of draft accounts, we waere still confirming assat valuations, and as a result, revaluations are not yet accounted for within the
draft accounts. This will be included once finalised.

In years when the full revaluation Is not conducted, the Authority values s major sporting venues (Lee Valley Velopark, Lee Valley White Water Centre, Lae Vallay
Hockey & Tennls Centre, Lee Vallay Athletlcs Centre, and Lee Valley Ice Centre), which account for around 70% of the asset base value, along with 20% of the other
revaluable assets, This ansures that the carrying valus Is not matarially mistated at any year end.

Thae valuations comply with the reporting requirements to show, where appropriate, the saparate value of land and tha separate value of bulldings for those
prescribed catagories of hon-current assets together with the value of components of those specified non-current assets on the next accaslon when one of the
following events occurs with each of the speclfied non-current assets:- acqulsition, significant additional spend or change to the economic Iife of the asset or the next
time it Is to be re-valued In the five year rolling programma.




NOTE 34
INFORMATION ON ASSETS HELD

Lee Valiey Park was astablished [n 1967 to help mest the lelsure nesds of the people of London, Hertfordshire and Essex. It stratches aleng 23 miles of the
River Lea from east Landon to Ware In Hartfordshira. It was created to regenersta 4000 hactares of land and water for a wide ranga of sporting, leisure and
neture consarvation activities.

A breakdewn of our significant fixed assats, axduding Investment propertias, s given below:

Lelsure/sports centras Lee Valley lcs Cantre
Lea Valley Athetics Cantre
Lee Valley White Water Centre
Lea Valley velopark

Lea Valley Tennls and Hockey Centre
Golf courses 18 - hele golf course at Lae Valley Lelsura Complex
Rlding centre Laa Valley Riding Cantre, Leyton
Farms Holyflaldhall Farm, Waltham Abbay

Hayes Hill Farm, Waltham Abbey

Boatyards Lee Valley Marina, Springfield, Clapton
Lea Valley Marina, Stanstend Ahbotts

Campsltes/caravan parks Les Valley Campsite, Sewardstons
Lea Vailey Caravan Park, Dobbs Walr
Lee Valley Campsite, Plcketts Lock Complex

Sports ground Myddelton House sports ground

Heritage sites Three Milis Centre
Myddelton Houss Gardaens, Enfleld
Rye Housa Gatehouse, Hoddesdon
Lea Valley Watarworks Centre
Gunpowdar Park, Waltham Abbey
Abbey Gardens, Waltham Abbey

The Park and its open spaces Spitalbrook, Broxbourne
{Community assets) Essex & Middlesex Filtar Bads, Leyton
Tottenham Marshes
Waltham and Cheshunt Marshes
Fishers Green, Waltham Abbey
Cathagena Estate, Broxbourne
Wharf Road, Wormley

W also diractly own aver 1,400 hectares of the Jand and water resources which make up a total of about 4,000 hectares of the Les Valley from Ware [n
Hartfordshira to the Thames at East Indla Dock,




NOTE 38
INVESTMENTS

Shart term Inestmants

Maturing within 7 days

Maturing between 7 days and 3 months
Maturing between 3 months and 1 year

2023/24 2022/22
£000s £100:
4,087 2,008
6,263 5,011

0 ]
10,350 7,019
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NOTE 86

BORROWING
Long term borrowing 2018128 2022/23
BNy N0

Analysls of lnan by type

Public Warks Lozn Board 5,000 5,000

Other Local Authorltles 20,000 20,000

TOTAL BORROWING 25,000 25,000

Analysis of loan by meturity 023/24 poierdpl]
£2 (13

Short-tarm borrowing

Loans Maturity Within 1 Yaar 25,000 20,000

Long-term borrowing

Batween 1 and 2 years [4] 5,000

Batween 2 and 5 years 1] ]

Betwean 5 and 10 years o o

More Than 10 years o 0
o 5,000

TOTAL BORROWING 25,000 25,000

NOTE 37

CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

In respect of the Lea Valley White Water Centre, tha Autharity has a contingent liabllity of £0.9m In relation to its lottery funding
agresment with Sport England and £4m In relation to Its funding agreement with East of England Development Agency {EEDA).

There Ts also a contingent llablity of £5.25m far the Velopark In relation to the Jolnt lottery funding agreement between the Authority,
Sport England and the Olymplc Devalopmaent Authority. In addition the Authority also has a contingent llabliity of £2m In relation to a
funding agreement with the London Marathon Trust.

NOTE 38
EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Thera were na eventsafter then blance sheet date that affect the sccounts for 2023/24,
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NOTE 39
Management Risk Assessment Re Golng Concern
Introduction

The Authority, like most public sectar organisations, continues to face a very challenging time, with high inflation, huge rises
in energy prices, and a general cost of living crisis, all coming off the back of the Covid-19 pandemic and the Russian invasion
of Ukralne, which both have had a significant Impact on the local and global economy.

We are continuing our recovery from the impact on our cash resources caused by the widespread enforced closure of Park
sites and venues, as well as building on the relationship with GLL who manage our major sporting venues.

One of the underlying risks facing the LVRPA over the next twelve to eighteen months is to ensure that as an entity we
continue as a going concern. It is for management to assess this risk and ensure robust financial and action plans are in place
now, and golng forward, that meet the current and future possible needs to ensure our continued recovery as well as building
resillence for the future.

Whilst we do have the statutory power enshrined in the Park Act on ralsing the levy, and if required, a supplementary levy,
and currently only do so to a third of what we legally could, It Is not sufficlent that we only rely on this power as ifthe Autherity
is in financial trouble the chances are that most of the contributing counclls are also in egually dire financial circumstances.
Equally the external political pressure will be to maintain or minimise increases in such levy demands If as expected similar
clrcumstances rematerialize.

Basis of preparation

The concept of a going concern assumes that the Authority’s functions and services will continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future. The provisions in the Code (Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2023/24) in respect of going concern reporting requirements reflect the economic and statutory environment in which this
Authority operates. These provisions confirm that, as the Authority cannot be created or dissolved without statutory
prescriptlon, It must prepare financial statements on a golng concern basls of accounting.

The Authority carrles out functlons essential to the local/regional community and is a revenue-ralsing body {with limits on
revenue-ralsing powers set out in the Park Act 1966 and Levying Regulations 1992, arising only at the discretion of central
government). If this Authority were in financial difficulty, the prospects are thus that alternative arrangements might be
made by central government elther for the continuation of the services it provides or for assistance with the recovery of a
deficit over more than one financlal year. As a result of this, it would not therefore be appropriate for this Authority's
financial statements to be provided on anything other than a going concern basis. Accounts drawn up under the Code
therefore assume that services will continue to operate for the foreseeable future.
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Golng Concern Analysis
Revenue and Levy Budget

The Authority set its budget and levy for 2024/25 in January 2024 (Paper Af4346/24 Authority Meeting 18 January 2024) in
response to the continued high energy prices, and the compounding effect of high inflation, which whilst having reduced to
4.0%, had been as high as 11,1% during the prior year. These all had an Impact on our expenditure over the prior year, and
with forecast only for a slow reduction in inflation over the coming year, meant that we were looking at a deflcit on our
budget of around £0.3m. Whilst we had Increased fees and charges for the coming vear, as well as expecting Increased
Investment returns on cash balances held, we recognised that as well as costs Increasing, we need to review the operatlional
structure at our marinas to ensure they were operating safely and efficlently.

We also recognised that the Utllity Risk Share — where the Authority take the price risk, and GLL the consumption risk - we
have In respect of the LSC would need to continue beyond the first two years, as long term forecasts on energy costs are now
not possible. This means that rather than the full risk {and expected lower prices) would have passed to GLL from Year 3, they
now sit with both parties, and that the Authority will be llable for higher costs than inltially envisaged at the commencement
of the LSC.

Furthermore, the Authority continues to Invest In our venues and open spaces, which along with the redevelopment of the
twin-pad Ice Centre, which opened In June 2023, has or will see, investment Into all the other sporting venues with
replacement of lighting systems, as well as upgrades to sporting facilities. Open spaces have a major Investment programme
too, which currently Includes works at Middlesex Filter Beds, footpath improvements at St Pauls Field, and major renovation
and desliting works at East India Dock Basin, which will require external funding assistance to fully deliver.

With this all In mind, Members agreed to Increase the Levy by 3% for the financlal year 2024/25 to enable us to deliver a
balanced budget. The use of reserves to fund a gap was not thought best practice, and that we should maintain a minimum
general reserve balance of £3m, with a recommended level at, or above £4m to allow for any short term annual fluctuations
that may materlalise.

Our Medium Term Financial Forecast continues to be revised to factor In changes In forecasts, estimates, and profiling of
works. In addition, we have been fortunate in receiving a refund of overpald VAT which relates to a recently agreed challenge
from Local Authorltles In England and Wales, as well as separate cases relating to Scotland and Northern Ireland, with regards
to exemption of sporting Income, and non-distortion in favour of the LAs. For us, this relates to historic VAT paid when the
sports venues were In Authority operation and covers the perlod 2010-2015 and from 2020-2022. With the main sports
venues now run under the LSC, there will be minimal ongoing revenue beneflt to us under our current operating model.
Members approved allocating these funds to the general fund when they met In January 2024.

As a result of the 2023/24 surplus of £1.97m, the unallocated general fund balance has increased to £5.0m. As a result, and
to reflect the need to carry £0.16m of the underspend forward to 2024/25, the MTFP has been updated and forecasts are for
this to reduce to £4.8m at the end of 2024/2S, and holding that level throughout the MTFP perlod. However, whilst cash
reserves wera strong at £15.2m at 31 March 2024, this Is artificially high due to levels of creditors cutstanding at year end,
along with slippages within the capital programme, These are all expect to resolve over the next financlal year, and cash levels
falling to around £5.8m at March 2025, due to the need to self-finance our capltal programme, before slowly recovering In
future years.

Below Is an analysis of our forecast usable reserves, and expected cash balances at the end of each year, based on current

approved budgets and capltal projects, and covers the Medium Term Financlial Forecast period to 2026/27. This has been
updated to reflect the 2023/24 outturn, and forecasts for the years ahead.
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Closing Balance Forecasts
2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Usable Reserves
General Fund
Insurance Fund ‘
Repairs & Renewals Funds
Sub Total Revenue Reserves

Capital and Asset Based Reserves
Asset Maintenance Reserve
Usable Capital Recelpts

Sub Total Capltal Reservas

Total Usable Reserves {16,774) (13,477) {13,548) {14,234)

Caphtal Financing & Borrowing
Capital Financing Requirement 32,446 32,999 31,792 30,803
External Borrowing

Net internal Borrowing 7,446 9,699 9,292 8,903

Creditors/Debtors - General Liabilities

Net Closing Cash Balance {15,164) {5,914) (5,992) (6,967)

Lelsure Services Contract

The Lelsure Services Contract with GLL commenced in April 2022, for an Inltlal 10 year period. Whilst this should give us some
certainty over operation and cash in- and out-flow relating to the sports venues, we are currently renegotiating the utilitles
provision within the contract, to allow for risk sharing (Authority on price, and GLL on consumption) for the whole contract
duration, rather than the current two years. The MTFP factors this In, and we currently anticipate a change to the annual
management fee payable between the parties of up to £1.2m flowing to GLL.

Revenue Outturn

Outturn Is reported to Members on a quarterly basls. The full year outturn for 2023/24 was reported in May 2024 as £2.05m,
which Included the £1.82m VAT refund. The orlginal budget for 2023/24 was set with a deficit/use of reserves of £0.456m,
which included a contingency against increased cost and income reduction of £0.6m, so the outturn is a significant
improvement upon this. Venues have been delivering at, or near to, expected income levels as well as looking for savings
and efficiencles. We have seen, and will continue to see, increases In borrowing costs as a result of high interest levels, but
this has been offset by significantly higher investrment income. We are aware, however, that as our cash reserves fall, the
investment return will reduce. Borrowling is currently done only on short-term basis, with loans of up to two years only. This
does require regular reflnancing, although Members have approved this approach rather than tying us long term {up to 40
years) to high charges, and in turn, charges against the annual levy.

This is supported by robust weekly and monthly financial monitoring and expenditure controls on purchase ordering that are
already in place.
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Capital Investment

The Authority base budget Is built around utllising £1.45m of the levy to asslst in capltal and asset related works (Major
Repairs £1.25m and revenue contribution to projects £0.2m) — Capltai Expenditure can be funded directly from borrowing
and alleviate pressure on cash reserves and contributions albeit that borrowing will incur capltal charges, and the need to be
ultimately funded from revenue, that directly Impact on the levy. However, with high Interest rates this Is not something we
are currently considering, outside of the Ice Centre Investment. The Autherity set Its prudential indicators In January 2024
which fed into the Medlum Term Financlal Plan and budget and levy plans for the future. The Authorlty currently has external
borrowing of £25m, and Is expecting to continue to carry this, reducing annually In line with statutory requirements for the
lifetime of the Ice Centre. in addition, the Authority will seek to maximise land sale recelpts where land has approved
designation of not required for park purposes.

Buckingham Constructing Group Limited

The Authority entered Into a contract with Buckingham Group Constructing Ltd (BGCL) In August 2021 for the construction of
a new twin-pad ice rink, with a total project cost of £30m. The old venue closed to the public on 27 June 2021, and was
formally handed over to BGCL on 16 August 2021, Construction continued throughout 2021 and 2022, with practical
completion and handover of site from BGCL to the Authority and lease by the Authority to Greenwich Leisure Limited, the
operator, both occurring on 10 May 2023, with the new venue reopening to the public on 17 June 2023,

There existed a number of snagging Issues and defects that BGCL along with Its sub-contractors were working on remedying.
However, BGCL formally filed for administration on 17 August 2023 due to escalating contract losses on other contracts, and
on 4 September 2023 Grant Thornton were formally appointed Administrator,

Authority officers met with the Project Managers, Wrenbridge, and their legal advisers, Forsters, In early September to discuss
the next steps, including the outstanding works, the financial position with regards to BGCL and how we can offset cost we
will now incur agalnst the retention held by the Authorlty - as is the case with large contracts, we have retained a proportion
of fees due as retention. However, as the original budget Includes a significant sum as contingency (E2m) we are confident
that, even with additional project management and dellvery costs, we will not exceed the original budget.

Snagging works on site have since continued, although none of the outstanding works were operationally critical and are now
expected to be completed over the next year.

As at May 2024, there had been no further communication from the Administrator.

Conclusion

The Authority continues to bulld, rebulld, and create resllience for the future, by investing In our land and asset portfolio. The
operational outturn for 2023/24, the Medium Term Forecast to 31 March 2026, and the reserves and cash position
demonstrate that the Authority will continue to operate as a healthy golng concern throughout 2024/25 and beyond. We
have developed an updated business plan to cover the perlod 2024-2027 which sets out our aspiratlons for the Park In the
coming years, and how we will manage this significant asset for the beneflt of all, be that local, reglonal, natlonal or
international.
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NOTE 40
Critical Judgements In applying accounting policies

In appiylng the accounting policles set out in note 1, the Authority has to make judgements about complex transactions, or
those involving uncertainty about future events.

The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

Group accounts

The Statement of Recommended Practice requires local authorities to consider all thelr interests in subsidiaries, associated
companles and joint ventures and to prepare & full set of group financlal statements where they have material interests,
thereby praviding a complete picture of the authorlty’s control over other entities,

A management contract for the leisure facilities was awarded to Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL), and commenced on 1 April
2022, The Authority, other than what is included within the contract, does not have direct power to influence operations and
activities of GLL.

Therefore, the Authority has determined that it has no Interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures of a material
nature, and is not required to prepare group accounts.
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NOTE 41

Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contalned: estimated flgures that are based on assumptions made by the Authorlty about the
future of that are otherwlse uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experlence, current trends and other

relevant factors. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ from those estimates.

The items In the Authorlty’s balance sheet at 31 March 2024 for which there is significant risk of material adJustment in the
forthcoming financlal year are as follows:

Penslons llabllity
Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements relating to the discount rate used,
the rate at which salarles are projected to increase, changes In retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on

pension fund assets.

The net penslon lability can vary considerable year on year, due to the complex ways in which the assumptlons Interact. For
example, a 0.1% Increase In the discount rate assumption would result in a decrease in the penslon llabllity of £3.9million.

A firm of consulting actuarles Is engaged to provide the Authority with expert advice about the assumptlons to be applied.
Property, plant and equipment

Assets are depreclated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level of repalrs and malntenance that
will be incurred In relatlon to Indlvidual assets, The life of our assets vary considerable, due to the mature and age of particular
assets; land and bulldings vary between 5 and 60 years, with vehicles, plant and machinery between 5 and 15.

If the useful live of assets Is reduced, then depreciation will Increase and the net carrylng amount of the assets falls.

We carry out a full review of our assets on a five yearly basls, although year on year we review a percentage of our assets for
possible change In value and/or useful life.

Under Its Land & Property strategy the Authority has taken declsions to declare certain parts of Its land portfolio as surplus

to the Park’s requirements. Where and asset has formally been approved as surplus by the full Authority It has been classifled
as a non-current asset held for sale.

78



NOTE 42

Accounting standards that have been issusad but have not yet been adopted

The Code of Practice requires local authorities to disclose information relating to the impact of an accounting change that will
be required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted.

As per CIPFA Bulletin 17 - Closure of the 2023/24 Financial Statements

The followIng standards have been Issued, that relate to future accounting perlods.

The standards introduced by the 2024/25 Code where disclosures are required in the 2023/24 financlal statements, in
accordance with the requirements of paragraph 3.3.4.3 of the Code, are:

a)

b}

c)

d)

e)

IFRS 16 Leases issued in January 2016 (but only for those local authoritles that have not decided to voluntarily
implement IFRS 16 in the 2023/24 year).

Classification of Liabllitles as Current or Non-current {Amendments to IAS 1) Issued In January 2020. The
amendments:

+ specify that an entity’s right to defer settlement must exist at the end of the reporting period

o clarify that classification Is unaffected by management’s intentions or expectations about whether the entity
will exercise its right to defer settlement

s clarify how lending conditlons affect classification, and

s clarify requirements for classifylng llabllitles an entlty will or may settle by issulng its own equity instruments.

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16) issued in September 2022. The amendments to IFRS
16 add subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback transactions.

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants {Amendments to |AS 1) Issued in October 2022. The amendments improved
the information an entity provides when its right to defer settlement of a liabillty for at least 12 months [s subject to
compllance with covenants.

Internationzal Tax Reform: Pillar Two Model Rules {Amendments to [AS 12) issued in May 2023, Pillar Two applies to
multinational groups with a minimum level of turnover. The amendments introduced:

s atemporary exception to the requirements to recognise and disclose information about deferred tax assets and
liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes, and
* targeted disclosure requirements for affected entities.

Supptier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to |1AS 7 and IFRS 7) issued in May 2023. The amendments require an
entity to provide additional disclosures about its supplier finance arrangements. The 1ASB developed the new
requirements to provide users of financial statements with information to enable them to:

* assess how suppller finance arrangements affect an entity’s llabilitles and cash flows, and
* understand the effect of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s exposure to liguidity risk and how the
entity might be affected if the arrangements were no longer available to it.

Item a) will only be applicable to local authorities that have not voluntarily implemented IFRS 16 in 2023724, It is likely that
though they provide clarifications, items b), ¢} and d) will not have a significant impact on the amounts anticipated to be
reported In the financial statements. There wiil be limited application of [tems e) and f).
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GLOSSARY OF ANANCIAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Actounting policies
Those princlples, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by an entity that specify how the effects of transactions and other events
ara to be reflected In Its financlal statements through:
l. recognising;
Il. selecting measurement bases for; and
lil. presenting assets, llabllitles, gains, losses and changes to reserves.

Accounting policles do not Include estimation technlques.

Accounting policles define the process whereby transactlons and other events are reflected In financial statements. For example, an
accounting policy for a particular type of expenditure may specify whether an asset or a loss Is to be recognised; the basls on which [t 1s to
be measured; and where in the Income and expenditure account or balance sheet It Is to be presented.

Actuarial gains and losses

For a defined beneflt pension scheme, the changes In actuarial deficlts or surpluses that arise because:
|. events have not colnclded with the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation (experience gains and losses); or
Il. the actuarlal assumptions have changed.

Caplital axpenditure
Expendlture on the acqulsition of a non-current {IFRS term — SORP term fixed) asset or expendliture which adds to and not merely maintains
the value of an existing non-current asset.

Ctass of long term assets
The classes of long term assets required to be included in the accounting statements are:

Proparty, plant and aqulpment, expectad to ba used In mora than one period;
¢  Investment property;

Intanglble assets;

Long term Investment;

Investment in assoclates and Joint ventures; and

Surplus assets, heald for disposal.

Further analysls of any of these items should be given Iif It Is necessary to ensure falr presentation.
Operational assets Non-operational assets:

Community assets
Assets that the Authority Intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no determinable useful life and that may have restrictions on thelr
disposal. Examples of community assets are parks and historical bulldings.

Consistency
The princlple that the accounting treatment of llke temns within an accounting period, and from one period to the next Is the same.

Contingent Assat
A contingent asset Is a possible asset arlsing from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more
uncertaln future events not wholly within the local authority’s control.

Contingant Labllity
A contingent llabllity is elther:
l. a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be conflrmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertaln
future events not wholly within the authority’s control; or
Il. a present obilgation arlsing from past events where it Is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficlent reliabillty.

Corporate and democratic core

The corporate and democratic core comprises all activitles which local authoritles engage In specifically because they are elected, multl-
purpose authorliles, The cost of these activitles are thus over and above those which would be Incurred by a serles of independent, single-
purpose, nominated bodles managing the same services. Thera Is therefore no logical basls for apportioning these costs to services.

Currant sarvice cost {pensions)
The Increase In the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s liabillties expacted to arlse from employee service In the current perlod.

Curtaiiment
For a defined benefit pension scheme, an event that reduces the expected years of future service of present employees or reduces for a
number of employees the accrual of defined benefits for some or all of thelr future service. Curtallments Include:
I. termination of amployees’ services earlier than expected, for example as a result of closing a factory or discontinulng a segment of
a business; and
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Il. termination of, or amendment to the terms of, a defined benefit scheme so that some or all future serviee by current employees
will no longer qualify for benefits or will qualify only for reduced benefits.

Revenus expenditure funded from capital under statute
Expenditure which may properly be capitafised, but which does not result In, or remaln matched with, assets controlled by the Authority.
For instance, capital grants given to external bodies, or loans awarded for capital purchases.

Defined benefit scheme

A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution scheme. Usually, the scheme rules define the benefits
independently of the contributions payable, and the benefits are not directly related to the investments of the scheme. The scheme may
be funded or unfunded {Including notionally funded).

Depraclation

The measure of the cost or re-valued amount of the benefits of the fixed asset that have been consumed during the perled. Consumption
includes the wearing out, using up or other reduction in the useful life of a fixed asset whether arising from use, the passage of time or
obsolescence through elther changes In technology or demand for the goods and services produced by the asset.

Discretionary benefits
Retirement beneflts which the employer has no legal, contractual or constructive obligation to award and are awarded under the authority’s
discretlonary powers, such as the local govemment {discretionary payments) regulations 1996.

Estimation techniques
The methods adopted by an entity to arrive at estimated monetary amounts, corresponding to the measurement bases selected, for assets,
liabllitles, galns, losses and changes to reserves. Estimation techniques implement the measurement aspects of accounting policies, An
accounting policy will specify the basis on which an item is to be measured; where there Is uncertainty over the monetary amount
corresponding to that basis, the amount will be arrived at by using an estimatlon technique. Estimation technlques Include, for example;
. methods of depreclation, such as stralght-line and reducing balance, applied In the context of a particular measurement basis, used
to estimate the proportion of the economic benefits of a tangible flxed asset consumed In a perlod; or
If. different metheds used to estimate the proportion of debts that will not be recovered, particularly where such methods consider a
population as whole rather than individual balances.

Events after the balance sheet date
Events after the balance sheet date are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the balance sheet date and the
date when the statement of accounts Is authorlsed for [ssue.

Exceptional tems
Materfal items which derive from events or transactlons that fall within the ordinary activities of the Authority and which need to be

disclosed separately by virtue of thelr size or Incldence to glve fair presentation of the accounts.

Expected rate of return on penslons assets
For a funded defined benefit scheme, the average rate of return, Including both income and changes in fair value but net of scheme
expenses, expected over the remalning life of the related obligation on the actual assets held by the scheme.

Extraordinary items

Material items, possessing a high degree of abnormality, which derlve from events or transactions that fall outside the ordinary activities
of the Authority and which are not expected to recur. They do not include exceptional items nor do they include prior period ltems merely
because they relate to a prior period.

Financial Instruments
A financlal Instrument Is any contract that glves rise to a financlal asset of one entlty and a financlal liability of another.

Finance lease

A finance lease is one that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownershlp of a fixed asset to the lessee. It should be
presumed that such a transfer of risks and rewards occurs if at the Inception of a lease the present value of the minimum lease payments
including any Inltial payment, amounts to substantially ail (normally 90 per cent or more) of the fair vaiue of the leased asset. The present
value should be calculated by using the interest rate implicit in the lease. However, where the present value of the minimum lease payments
does not amount to 90 per cent or more of the falr value of the leased asset, It should not be automatically assumed that the lease Is not a
finance lease. FRS 5 requires that the substance of the transaction be reflected and therefore the lease may still need to be classlfied as a
finance lease.

Notwithstanding the fact that the lease meets the definition above, the presumption that an asset should be classified as a finance |ease
may In exceptional circumstances be rebutted If it can be clearly demonstrated that the lease in question does not transfer substantiafly all
the risks and rewards of ownership (other than legal title) to the lessee.
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{AS 19 (under SORP FR517)

1A% 19 Is the UK accounting standard relating to pensions accounting. It requires that an organisation should account for retirement beneflts
when It Is committed to give then, even If the actual glving will be many years Into the future. IAS 19, the code standard covers a wider
range of benefits than FR$17, the SORP standard, as It Includes not only short term benefits but post employment, e.g. pensions, cther long
term employee benefits and termination benefits. It requires all short term benefits to be accounted for as they are earned. IAS 19 also
distinguishas between accumulating and non accumulating benefits.

Going concermn
The concept that the Authority will remaln In operational existence for the foreseeable future, In particular that the Income and expenditure
accounts and balance sheet assume no intentfon to curtail significantly the scale of operations.

Governmant grants
Assistance by government and inter-government agencles and similar bodles, whether local, national or international, in the form of cash
ortransfers of assets to an authorlty In return for past or future compllance with certaln condltions relating to the activitles of the authority.

Impatrment
Areduction In the value of a fixed asset below Its carrying amount on the balance sheet.

Infrastructure assets
These are assets that comprise public facllitles and which provide essential services and enhance the productive capacity of the economy,
for example highways and footpaths

Intarast cost (pensions}
For a defined beneflt scheme, the expected Increase during the perlod In the present value of the scheme llabllities because the benefits
are one period closer to settlement.

Investment properties
Interest In land and/or bulldings:
I. in raspact of which construction work and development have been completed; and
Ii. which Is held for its invastment potentlal, with any rental income belng negotiated at arm’s length.

Invastments {non-pensions fund}

A long-term Investment Is an investment that Is ntended to be held for use on a continulng basis In the activities of the Authority.
Investments should be so classifled only where an intention to hold the Investment for the long-term can clearly be demonstrated or where
there are restrictions as to the Investor's abllity to dispose of the Investment. Investments, other than those in relation to the pensions
fund, that do not meet the above criterla should be classified as current assets.

Liquid resourcas
Current asset Investments that are readlly disposal by the Authority without disrupting Its business and are elther readlly convertible to
known amounts of cash at or close to the carrying amount, or traded In an active market.

Net book valua
The amount at which fixed assets are included In the balance sheet, l.e. thelr historical cost or current value less the cumulative amounts
provided for depreciation.

Net current replacement cost
The cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset In its existing condition and In Its existing use, l.e. the cost of Its replacement or of
the nearest equivalent asset, adjusted to reflect the current condition of the existing asset.

Net realisable valus
The open market value of the asset In Its existing use {or market value in the case of non-operational assets), less the expenses to be
Incurred In realising the asset.

Non-operationsl assats

Non-current assets held by the Authority but not used or consumed in the delivery of services or for the service or strateglc objectives of
the Authority. There are three categories of non-operational assets; Investment properties; assets that are surplus to requirements and
assets under construction. It should be noted that the Incidance of rental Income does not necessarlly mean that the asset [s an Investment
property; It should be deemed an investment property only If the asset s held solely for Investment purposes and does not support the
service or strategic objectives of the authority and the rental Income is negotiated at arms length.

Oparating leases
A lease other than a finance lease.

Operational assets

Fixed assets held and occupled, used or consumed by the local authority In the direct delivery of those services for which it has elther a
statutery or discretionary responsibility or for the service or strategic objectives of the authority.



Past service cost
For a defined benefit scheme, the Increase in the present value of the scheme labilities related to employee service in prior perlods arising
In the current period as a result of the Introduction of, or Improvement to, retirement benefits.

Prior pariod adjustmants

These material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in accounting policles or from the correction of fundamental
errors. A fundamental error [s one that Is of such significance as to destroy the validity of the financial statements. They do not Include
normal recurring corrections or adjustments of accounting estimates made In prior years.

Related parties
Two or more parties are related partles when at any time during the financlal perfod:
l. one party has direct or Indirect control of the other party; or
I. the parties are subject to common control from the same source; or
lll.  one party has Influence over the financial and operaticnal policies of the other party to an extent that the other party might be
Inhiblted from pursuing at all times its own separate interests; or
IV. the parties, In entering a transaction, are subject to influence from the same source to such an extent that one of the parties to the
transaction has subordinated its own separate Interests.

Examples of related partles of an authority Include:
|. central government;
Il. local authorlties and other bodies’ precepting or levying demands on the counch tax;
I, its subsidiary and associated companies;
IV. lts joint ventures and joint venture partners;
V. Its members;
VI. Tits chlef officers; and
VIl. s Pension Fund.

Examples of related parties of a pension fund Include its:
I. administering authority and its related parties;
il. scheduled bodies and their related parties; and
Il. trustees and advisers.

These Ilsts are not Intended to be comprehensive.
For Individuals identlfied as related parties, the following are also presumed to be related parties:
. members of the close family, or the same household, and
It. partnerships, companles, trusts or other entlties 'n which the Indlvidual, or a member of their close family or the same household,
has a controlling interest.

Related party transactions
A related party transaction s the transfer of assets or llabllities or the performance of services by, to or for a related party irrespective of
whether a charge is made. Examples of related party transactions include:
I, the purchase, sale, lease, rental or hire of assets between related partles;

Il. the provision by a pension fund to a related party of assets of loans, irrespective of any direct economic benefit to the pension fund;

It the provision of a guarantee to 2 third party In relation to a liabllity or obligation of a related party;

IV. the provision of services to a related party, Including the provision of pension fund administration services;

V. transactions with individuals who are related parties of an authority or a penslon fund, except that applicable to other members of

the communilty or the pension fund, such as councll tax, rents and payments of benefits.

This list Is not intended to be comprehensive.
The materlality of related party transactions should be Judged not only In terms of thelr significance to the authority, but also In relation to

Its related party.

Remuneration
All sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by way of expenses allowances (as far as those sums are chargeable to UK
income tax} and the money value of any other benefits received other than in cash. Pension contributions payable by the employer are

excluded.

Residual Value
The net realisable value of an asset at the end of its useful life. Residual values are based on prices prevailing at the date of the acquisition
(or revaluatlon) of the asset and do not take account of expected future price changes.

Retirement benefits
All forms of consideratlon given by an employer In exchange for services rendered by employees that are payable after the completion of
employment. Retirement benefits do not Include tarmination benefits payable as a result of elther
l. an employer’s declslon to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date or
Il. an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy In exchange for those beneflts, because these are not glven in exchange for
services rendered by employees.



Schama llabllitles

The Ilabllities of a defined benefit scheme for outgoings due after the valuation date. Scheme llabliities measured using the projected unit
method reflects the benefits that the employer Is committed to provide for service up to the valuation date.

Settlement
An Irrevocable action that relieves the employer {or the defined benefit scheme) of the primary responsibilities for a pension obligation
and elimlnates significant risks relating to the obligation and the assets used to effect the settlement. Settlements include:
l. alump-sum cash payment to scheme members in exchange for thelr rights to recelve specified pension benefits;
I, the purchase of an Irrevocable annuity contract sufficient to cover vested benefits; and
Iit. the transfer of scheme assets and llabilities refating to a group of employees leaving the scheme.

Stocks
The amount of unused or unconsumed stocks held In expectation of future use. When use will not arise until a later period, it Is appropriate
to carry forward the amount to be matched to the use or consumption when It arlses. Stocks comprise the following categories:
|. goods or other assets purchased for resale;
Il consumable stores;
Iil. raw materials and components purchased for Incorporation Into products for sale;
IV. products and servicas In Intermediate stages of completlon;
V. long-term contract balances; and
VI. finished goods.

Tanglble non-current assets
Tanglble assets that yleld benefits to the Authorlty and the services it provides for a period of more than one year.

Usaful Ife
The perlod over which the Authority will derive benefits from the use of a non-current asset.
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